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THE HISTORY OF

YORK TOWNSHIP

The history of York township begins with the acquisition of
the Northwest Territory--those lands lying west of the Allegheny
Mts., and extending westward to the Mississippi River. This land
originally c¢laimed by Virginia, Massachusetts, Comnecticut, North
Carclina, South Carolina, and Georgia was by 1787 ceded to the
national government. By 1784 the federal government was moving
to provide a form of government for the territory so the "Ordi-
nance of 1787" was passed.

It provided that the region north of the Ohio River should
be organized into no less than three nor more than five states
and that when a territory had a population of 60,000 it might
be admitted into the union with a status equal to the original
states.

This document also contained a "Bill of Rights" guaranteeing
freedom of religion, prohibiting slavery, and encouraging public
education.

The Ohio Company, having purchased 4,500,000 acres, was
ordered by an act of Congress adopted in 1785, to lay the ter-
ritory out in townships six miles square with 36 sections in
each township. Each sixteenth section to be reserved for the
support of schools with two townships set agide for a university.

Though the land was possessed by the United States there
gtill remained the problem of the Indian ownership. Many Indian
tribes still held land in the territory and had to be dealt with,
Among these tribes were the Weas, Ottawas, Pottawattamies, Wyan-
dots, Delawares, Shawanees, Miamies, Kickapoos, Chippeways, &and
a few tribes of the Iroquois.

The United States govermment, by purchase and treaty, finally
had complete possession of the land in 1842 when the Wyandots
ceded the last of their lands and left for Kansas. .

In the meantime five states had been set up out of the North-
west Territory: Ohio, Illinois, Indiana, Michigan and a portion
of Wisconsin. Ohio having reached the required population was
admitted as a state in 1803,

Van Wert County is one of three counties in Ohic named for
three Revolutionary patriots who captured the spy, Major Andre.
This eventually led to the disclosure that Benedict Arnold was
giving information about the Colonial Army to the Britigh,

To reward these men, John Paulding, David Williams, Isaac
Van Wert, the Congress awarded them an annual pension of $200,00,
Today the counties of Paulding, Williams and Van Wert bear their
names in their nonor. '



Today, 1S76, prosperous farms, modern homes, and improved
rvads bear few ol the marks of one-hundred and forty years ago
for then the land was so level and wet, the forests so dense
that crops were raised with great difficulty even after a
cspace had been cleared. Many settlers, therefore, turned their
attention to hunting the game which, because of its abundance,
provided the necessities of life.

Trese pioneers were a hardy, industrious group who, at
first, had to be content with providing their families with
Just enough to satisfy their own needs., However they had a
vision cf the future, Finally they had cleared enough land so
that they were no longer dependent on their guns and eulti-
vation of the soil was substituted for the pursuit of game,

-In 18345, with the opening of the Miami Canal, a new era
vas opened znd industry and enterprise began to flourish.
Tizher became valuable and the farmer, while clearing his land,
found the timber valuable enough to more than pay for the clear-
ing of thc land., This resulted in a fresh impetus to Tarming
the almost inexhaustable fertility of the soil., The possessor
of 30 or 160 acres looked about him, and with an appreciation
of the opportunities afforded to acquire wealth, toolk courage
anew, and putting his hand to the plow inaugurated that period
of agricultural development which has given the county its pre-
sent prominent rank in the agriculture sections of the state.

Van Wert County was laid out in 1820, but the actual or-
canization did not take place until sometime later. At a
session of the County Commissioners held at Willshire in 1837
several townships were named, It was at this time, that York
Tovmehip was set up. the Commissioners were Jesse Atkinson
and Joshua Goodwin,

They ordered that township No. 2 S., R, 3 E., be or-
~anized under the name of York and ordered that the qualified
electors meet at the house of Mr, Woolery on the 15th of June,

537 for the purpose of electing officers for said township,
“mere were at this time 23 electors:

Tfrancis xiliot Robert Thomas
Jonn FeCallun David Walters
Jesge Atliinson John Arnold
Josnhua Goodwin Joseph Clark
Jacob logs Adam Wolford
3. 2, Vloolery Jacob Miller
Josenh loore James Walters
Willian llarrs John Heath
Lewis Culver Josiah Clink
Jesse oralinson John ¥eith
Joshua Bridenstine Tobias Moore
William I“orman v

The first ten pioneer families in the township were John
leath, John Rich, Jesse Tomlinson, John Bevington, Washington
[lark, John IMeCallua, Robert Thomas, Jacob Goodwin, John Goodwin
and John Keith., 3By 1247 ceveral more families had arrived.

York Township is bounded on the North by Ridge Townsnip, on
the Last by Jennings Townsaip, on ihe South by Mercer County, on
the West by Liberty Zownship, It was divided into 26 sections
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of 640 acres each. The sections were numbered beginning with
number one in the Northeast corner,

The natural drainage is provided by the Little Auglaize
River and its tributaries. This river enters the township at
the Southwest section number 31 and continues Northeast leaving
through the Southeast corner of section one., By 1886 several
auxillary ditches had been constructed to complete the drainage
and so make farming & profitable industry. :

This area having been a part of the Black Swamp, was ex-
tremely wet, but as prosperity came to the settlers they were
able to begin the drainage of the land, which is now extremely
fertile and highly productive., The few remaining stands of
timber are only tokens of the rich forests which were once
here,

Growing in those forests were magnificent black walnut, oak,
elm, ash, maple, with some sycamore, cottonwood, beech and buck-
eye. The abundance of this native timber encouraged the building
of the log cabins and as the number of cabins grew the men turned
their attention to clearing more land and selling the logs., Some
of them going to the east coast to be used in the ship building
industry. '

The dense forests provided excellent shelter for the wild
animals of the area. Wolves, bear, deer, raccoons, wild cats,
porcupines, catamownts, and many others. Mur trading, there-
fore, was another source of income,

There are many stories told illustrating the perils en-
dured by these pioneers from the severe storms, when sufficient
proteection was not available, to the threat of wild animal and
Indian attack. Some of the Indians were, however, kind and
friendly.

The pioneer and his family went ta sleep many nights lis-
tening to the wolves howling and scratching on the cabin walls.

~ Mr, J, B. Brodnix recounts the story of his family's
arrival in York Township., They traveled from Philadelphia,
Pa., in 1836 to Dayton, Ohio, crossing the Alleghany Mountains
in a Virginia schooner, drawn by a team of mules. They arrived
first at Pittsburgh, Pa, There they boarded a boat on the
Ohic arriving at Cincinnati, Ohio, From there to Dayton, on
to Yellow Springs, finally arriving in York Township in 1839,
They lived in & pole pen on the farm of Evan B. Jones while a
log cabin on the east half of the southwest quarter of section
3y York Township, was being built,

"When we unloaded, mother and father both cried and offered
the man all that they had-$25.00-to take them back to Dayton,
but he refused because of the terrible condition of the roads.

With the help of his neighbors, who lived two, three, and
four miles away, my father built a cabin 18 feet square in a
dense forest, without a road any place., His neighbors were:
David W. McCoy, Daniel Beard, Evan B, Jones, Levi Rowland, John
Arnold, Leonard Varner., There was a village of Wyandot Indians
on the Little Auglaige a mile and a quarter from us, They were
very kind and hospitable,

In December, we moved into the log cabin, half of it was
floored with puncheons end had & bed quilt tor a door., There
was & fire place five by seven feet, a mudback wall and a stick
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chimney, When night would come, the wolves would approach the
house and scratch and howl until we could hear nothing else.
For ten years, between the months of November and February,
nothing could be heard except the howling of the wolves and the
nooting of the owlg."

"The nearest mill was at Piqua so it was necessary, at times,
to grind the corn by hand using an ocak block and an iron wedge.
This coarse meal was made into mush which was eaten along with
a chunk of venison or pork."

In 1847 there was quite an influx of immigrants among whom
were the Mortimers, Jacob Miller, Leonard Varner, Lee Boland,

%. B. Jones, Broadnix Clark, Samuel Curl, Lewis Culver, Jchn
Arnold, John Conn, Andrew, Putman, Jonas Harp, William Carter,
Jesse (Clark, Jesse Atkinson, Conrad Hunstead, and John Houster,
Though many of their claims had been filed earlier, they did
not arrive until later to take possession. The civilization of
the wilderness was on the way.

By 1975 the marks of earlier times have passed away. The
first sign of progress was the building of roads, so necessary
for trade and communication. They soon laced the township,

York Township was the first to have all of its roads black
topped. State routes 116, 709 and 81, county roads Mendon,
Jonestown, Wren-Landeck with the many connecting township
ones complete the network today.

The homes are well-kept and modern testifying to the industry.
0f the people and the productivity of the land., Another change
is . also noted., Iany of the farmers not only cultivate their land
but also hold jobs in the factories in the neighboring towns and
citieg~~Lima, Delphos, Van Wert, New Haven, Fort Wayne.’

York Township ranks high in the production of soybeans,
wheat, corn and ocats. Some cattle are "fed-out" and milk pro-~
duction is also an important activity. Some beets and tomatoes
are produced, but these are gradually giving way to the grain
cTops.

About 1850 Cyrus Clippinger started a fruit farm with a few
Ben Davis apple trees on the southeast corner of the Mendon and
Wren-Landeck road intersection.

He was followed ®y his son, Dean, who developed 1t until it
was known throughout the state for the many varieties of deli-
cious fruit e.sz. apples, plums, and peaches., At his death it
was sold and the present owner razed the entire orchaxrd,

There are currently two orchards being operated, one by
Howard Rauch located in Jonestown and one by J. Pruden on the
county line,

In 1900 the discovery of oil in the northeastern part of
the township introduced a new industry and Venedocia and Elgin
became typical boom towns. The oil soon ran out, however, and
agriculture returned to its former prominence and so continues
today.

The population of York Township today is five hundred
eighty-one,



JUSTICE OF THE PEACE OF YORK TOWNSHIP

The Justice of the Peace of York Township was elected by
the voters of the township for a term of two years, His was a
court of original Jjurisdiction to prevent breaches of the peace
and to fine and imprison in cases of minor crimes, He could
also perform marriages, This court was abolished in 1957 when
a county municipal court was created.

Many of the early cases involved the collection of money
due for wages, rent, board and merchandise. One cage involved
the use of obscene language in the presence of ladiez. A
young man was fined (1891) $.00 for riding on a sidewalk in
Jonestown. N

A fine of $2,97 was levied against a man who had falsely
charged another for trying to start a fight,

One merchant sued for merchandise showed cashmere at .25
a yard, silk thread .08 a spool, gingham .10 a yard, ceambric
at .05 and sateen .10, Another case involved stray cattle
which had destroyed Crops.
Following is a list of the Justices ol the Pedce who
gerved from 1841 to 19%7:
John Goodwin 1841 Lewis Culver 1842
John MeClain 1844 Conrad Honstell 1816
W. H. Peasley 1847 David Tracy 1849
Jonus Hamilton 1853 C. Barkdell 1854
John Colwell 1857=1863% J. F. Tomlinson 18b6, 1862, 186%4,
D, W, Evans 1865, 1867 L, F. Ross 1873-~1879, 1882
L., W. Ross 1879, 1881 W. T. Hughes 1880
J. R. Evans 1881 W. H, Nicodemus 188%-95, 1898-1200
D. W. Evans 1895-1896, 1905, 1903
C. H. Poster 1915-1946 Lester Morris 1947-1953
Gomer Jones 1953-1957
TRUSTEES FROM 1903 TO 1976
A. M. Jones T. R. Hughes
Joseph Hughes Henry Smith CLERKS
. E. Prichard « M. Thomas
A. J. Parker A. B, Jones J. . Jones
R. E. Owens. D. R. Owens I 3' Price
Allen Price D, D, Jones J. oW Reece
S. W. Gamble W. H. Lloyd Tenn Fovron
W. W, Williams I. N. Breese Tugh &augh

Thomas Rauch
Charles Prichard
Robvert Wallick
D. E. Welker

Edwin Swygart

James Nichols
Lester Morris
Clarence Owens
David Owens
Warren Morris
John Schwartz

John Zvanc
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TOWNS

3y 1382, the towns of Venedocia, Jonestown, Elgin and
Juena Vista had been established. ,

‘Buena Vista, now extinct, was founded by Jacob Wallick
and nared tfor the Mexican town where a famous battle of the
Texican War was fought.

it was located at the intersection of the Greenville Road
and State Noute 709, There were four streets sixty feet wide,
The main gtreel, known as Wall Street, was often used as a race
course, in summer for sulkies, in winter for sleighs, It ran
nortt end south while Canal Street ran east and west., There
were several ouildings including a post office, Methodist Epig-
copal Church, general store, saloon, blacksmith shop, saw-mill
end ashery. Wood was burned 1o ashes, the ashes leached {water
slowly passed over ashes to extract the lye) and the lye drawn
of'f and concentrated by boiling to make potash, which was used
in nmaking soap., 3Barrels of potash were shipped to the East and
South,

(ne interesting note--whiskey could be purchaged for 20
cents a gallon er a better quality for 30 cents. The catch was
that they both came out of the same barrel,

“he churelh stood as a testimony to their religious faith
and three sons of the founder entered the ministry.

‘here is now no evidence of this little "hamlet" having

existed,
JONESTOWN '

Jonestown, located at the intersection of the Jonestown
Aoad and Jonestown load 152, in the southwest corner of section
15 and the southeast corner of seection 16, began about 1850,
wiren Hugh F. Jones and Abraham Jones purchased land in sections
21, 22 and 28, lr. "Abby" Jones purchased 160 acres for himself
and Mr, David Breese in section 22, Dividing it when Mr. Breese
arrived in 1852, IMr, Jones took the east half of the tract and
Fr., Dreese the west., Also arriving in 1850 were Thomas Hughes,
and Griffith Goodwin., They were followed during the next three
years by nrs, ilizabeth Thomas and family, John W. Hughes,
‘ciiard Owens and fanily, John George, John Pritchard and John
Tichard.

Barly known as the Upper Settlement, it soon became known
o Jonestown, About 1270, Fr. David lughes opened a general
tore o sgerve tae communityv. He sold to Samuel Simpson and
e store Lhen pagsed throuch the followins owmers:  James
Saonas, Jonn H. Dreese, Owen 2. Owens, Tucker's, Applerate's
to0 Joe letzner in 1902~-1918, 24 lletzner 1919=-194Y9, 311l vaes
94%-1950, Floycd Jacks 1050-~105%,

e orizinal building nhad been remodeled by Mrs. Metzner
wio attached nmodern living guarters to the store., INr. Jacks
closeca the store and incorporated it in a larger dwelling which
is now occupied by lr., Willianm kungester.

Jonestown was fortunate to be included on the route of the
Toledo, ineinnati and St. Louis Reilroad which was buill in
1876=77. 1ls roaa, later purchased by the Norfollk and Western

!_{d"f) 8]
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(sometimes referred to as the Clover Leaf) still operates a
freight line through Jonestown, The last three agents were
Bill Monroe, Adell Metzner Lininger and Gomer Breese who served
from 1952-1971.

The Post Office, located in the grocery store, was given
the name Tokio by the railroad company because there was already
another Jonestown on their route.

By 1886 Jonestown had a sawnill, depot, school house,
elevator, and blacksmith shop. Later Mr, L. Zigler built stock
yards Just west of the elevator.

JONESTOWN ELEVATOR

The elevator was operated by Martin Ries, then Joe Metzner
wno sold it to a company called the Equity-Coop. They employed
Bill Lloyd as manager, It was eventually sold to Charles Krugh
who sold it to Orb Wyman, He hired Bill Monroe as manager, At
Mr. Wyman's death it was purchased by Chalmer Steel who sub-
sequently sold it to the present owner, John EKrugh. Wayne Gamble
is the present manager. ]

The last school house, a frame structure, was purchased by
the York Township Trustees., It is now the main part of the Town-
ship House. There are hung the pictures of all the classes which
were graduated from York School.

The elevator and the Township House along with nine dwellings
are all that remain of this once busy community center,

As a part of the Bicentennial celebration a flag pole, don-
ated by the citizens of York Townghip, and a marble marker, done-
ated by Richard Bebout will be dedicated, The Ohio City American
Legion also donated a flag,

As a memento of the past, the trustees have also placed in
the Township House the roll-top desk from the Superintendents
office, a few of the classroom chairs, and the bell from the
school house.

2nd JONESTOWN SCHOOL BUILDING

e



ELGIN

"~ The village of Elgin is located in the southwest corner of
section 25, the northwest corner of section 35 and the northeast
corner of gection 35 at the intersection of State Route 81 amd
Sands Road,

The history of Elgin also begins with the organization of
the township, In 1835, Jonathan Van Eman, in 1836 John Smith,
in 1837 Jacob Goodwin and in 1832-38 John Keith purchased land
in sections 25, 26, 35, 36, By 1859 church was being held in
the log schocl house, It was during this time that the name
Yorktown was adopted. However, there existed another Yorktown
Post Office on the railroad so the name Elgin was chosen, 1In
1883 Amy Van Eman, Experience Goodwin, and McDonald Van Eman
appeared before the County Commissioners to have the first plat
of the village recorded..

At that time 41 lots were surveyed and marked off, Main
and Washington Streets ran north and south; Maple, Cottonwood,
Walnut, and Van Eman ran east and west, In the same year the
J. E, McDonald addition containing six lots was annexed. 1In
1894, the D, C. Van Eman addition was laid out, adding twenty-
three lots. In March, 1896, fifty-eight electors signed a
petition asking the County Commissioners for the Incorporation
of Elgin. Their agent was Abijah Goodwin. Due to some object-
ions it was necessary to file a second petition in May, 1896,
The proceedings were held up for one year because of the object~
ion of Sarah Hennon, Her objection was denied, however, and the
incorporation was recorded April 14, 1897. In 1901, the 4Abi jah
Goodwin addition provided seven more lots. At this time the
population was between two and three-hundred people, many of
whom had been attracted by the o0il boom.

About 1897, Elgin decided to establish its school system
separate from the township and buklt the first two room village
school, However, by 1905, probably because the 0il boom was
running out, and because the tax duplicate had drastically fallen
off, they were rejoined to the township system at their request.

In 1883, the Chicago and Atlantic Railroad passed through
Elgin providing a much needed outlet to the markets and passanger
service, A depot was erected on the north side of the tracks,
on the pide west of Main Street, It was purchased by the Chicago-
irie Road, and by 1916 it was double track., The first agents -
were W. D, Alspaugh, Cal Converse and a Mr. Standish. It ran
four passanger trains a day as well as the freight trains. It
is now owned by the Erie-~Lackawanna which runs only freight
trains,

Mr. Sam Dennison was elected the first Mayor and he was also
the first postmaster,

There were at one time three churches holding services: The
United Brethren, The Seventh Day Adventists and the Methodists,
Mrs. "Dr," Davis of Venedocia and Thomas Owens organized the
first Christian Endeavor. Presently The United Brethren is the
only church holding services.

Mr, Albert Goodwin opened the first store on the west side
of Main Street across the railroad. It was a grocery and general
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merchandise store later taken over by Marion Goodwin who sold to
James Dibert. He was followed by Sam Bitters., Laban Wolf, the
next operator, gave calendsar plates as gsouvenirs, a practice used
by many store operators at that time. In 1931, Gene Overholt
became the owner, but he was there only a few months when the
store burned, He then opened a general store and barber shop in
a new building which had been erected by Bill Owens north of the
railroad on the west side of Main Street, Mr, Davis was the next
owner, He sold to Mr, Walter Gehr who had operated it only a
short time when he was killed in an auto accident. After his
death his wife held an auction and closed the store. It has
never reopened,

A combined hardware and shoe store was operated by Newt
Tracy and Charlie Roller next to the Wolf store. Later this
store wag operated by Otis Lininger. Only a skeleton of the
building marks the sgpot where once a store gtood.

In 1912, Guy Graham opened a store and blacksmith shop
where the present Graham Grocery stands. The first building was
Jjust half of the present store. They purchased the peol hall
and moved it beaside the store and joined it t6 make a larger
building and to provide living quarters above the store. The
blacksmith shop was just south of the store. In 1950, the
Graham's son Kenneth became the owner and operator of the
store, which has been, since his death, operated by his wife.

It is also the location of the Post Office. It is, -2t this

time, the only store in Elgin.

A " Mr, and Mrs., Walter Core, at one time, operated a quick
lunch store on Main Street, north of the railrocad.

There were at one time three doctors, two of whom were
Dr, . Pfeifer and Dr. Clay., A Mr, Wagner operated a barber shop,
and Mr, Shaffer a blacksmith shop.

The woods around Elgin became important sources of lumber
and after the railroad was built much of it was sent east for
the ship building industry.

During the o0il boom Elgin became rather famous as a wide
open town. There were three hotels, three saloons, and a dance
hall which, said Mrs. Doring, for the summer, had a floor under
the stars. The present council house was at one time the vil-
lage jail.

One very important building was the elevator, located about
where the present Elgin Grain Company is. The earliest record
obtainable names a Mr. Kolter of Spencerville as the owner and
Mike Welker as the operator. It was purchased by Grant Pollock
who operated it until 1920, when he sold it to Mr. Orb Wyman and
Emery Masters., Mr. Masters retired and in 1953 Carl and Janet
Smith became partners. Mr., Wyman died and in 1961 the Smiths
bécame the owners and continue to operate it at this time,

Orange Bennet and Charles Krugh operated stock yards on
State Route 81 on the western edge of Elgin., Eli Albright
followed Mr. Bennet. The last operator was Chas. Bonifas.

In 1953, Mr. Edwin Bolton started the gasoline and fuel oil
business by purchasing the truck from Mr. Davis which had been
used to deliver gasoline, Later the business was expanded to
include his sons Dick, Jerry, and Bob., That first truck carried
750 gallons. Today they operate three trucks, each with a
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capacity of 3,000 gallons and a semi-transport truck. Their
storage facility is located on the west edge of Elgin on State
Route 81,

In 1957 John Krugh set up the Elgin Service Center which
sells and services Brock Storage Bine, It has developed into
one of the largest dealerships in this area.

The present Mayor of Elgin is Ashley Muter; the clerk, Sue
Brincefield; treasurer, Jean Wentz., Members of the Council aret
Kenneth Thatcher, Larry Bowsher, Stanley Baker, Opal Siebert,
Junior Bowers and Wayne Gamble,

According to the 1970 Census the popuwlation of Elgin is 89.

RESIDENTS OF ELGIN, OHIO, 1975

Mr, & Mrs, Robert Bolton Mrs. Erma Rice
Mr, & Mrs. Richard Bolton Mrs. Alda Phelps
Mr, & Mrs. John EKrugh Mrs. Mary Goodwin
Mr., & Mrs. Wayne Gamble Mr. & Mrs., Al Bledsoe
Mr, & Mrs, Ed Heise Mrs. Leona & Jean Wentz
Mrs, Lois Rice Mrs. Mary Etgen ‘
Harold Burnett Mr. & Mrs. Tom Longstreth
Ire & Mrs, John Phelps Mr., & Mrs. Phil Bradshaw
Mrs. Mary E. Graham Mr. & Mrs., Kenneth Thatcher
Mr, & Mrs, John Lewis Mr, & Mrs. Elmer Seibert
Mr. & Mrs., Chas., Laughlin Mr, & Mrs. Stanley Baker
Mr. & Mrs. Stanley Thatcher Mr, & Mrs. Junior Swygart
Mr. & Mrs. David Enittle Mr. & Mrs, Ashley Muter
Mr., & Mrs. John Leist Charles Morris
Junior Bowers Mrs, Daisy Macklin .
Mr. & Mrs. Larry Bowsher Mr, & Mrs. Jack Brincefield
QI arede [ ALY Rea W & cumew?eﬁw«
WMQ\WM : %M 1 & g mw
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Venedocia is located on the southeast corner of section 12
and the northeast corner of section 13 on the township line
separating York and Jernings Townships.

In May, 1847, three Welsh families left their homeland to
come to America., These families were William Bebb of FPhin-
griafol, Darrowen, North wales; Thomas Morris, Dolygweiddil,
Trefeglwys, North Wales, and J. R. Jervis, Llanbrynmair, North
Wales. After a voyage of six weeks and three days they landed
in New York,

Another trip of two weeks took them to Cincinnati and
Paddy's Run, Ohioc, which was already a Welsh settlement.

‘ In October, 1847, William Bebb, who wae then Governor of
Ohio, accompanied his newly arrived cousin, William Bebb on a
tour through Allen and Van Wert Counties where they purchased
land for & settlement, Then in April, 1848, these families

came up the Miami Canal arriving at section Ten (Delphos), eight
miles from their settlement. They found a rude log cabin in the
woods with nearly a quarter of an acre of clearing around it,

The land was covered by a dense forest, harboring rapacious

=11



beasts such as panthers, wolves, and wildcats which frequently
awakened the settlers at night by their howling and scratching
at the walls,

Delphos at this time had two stores, and a flour mill, so
it was there they went for the few necessities they required i.e.
flour, sugar, yard good, thread. PFor these things they exchanged
butter at.05 or .06 cents per pound. Eggs brought .05 cents per
dozen., i

When they went to the mill with grain te be ground, they
left about noon so as to arrive by night fall, since it was so
extremely dangerous to travel by night through the forest, Ar-
riving at the mill, the horses would be tied to the wagons. The
shoppers would spend the night in the mill loft, The flour would
be ready the next day so they could return safely.

A story was told of this Black Swamp which shows Jjust how
treacherous it was. A man was trying to cross it and his teanm
and wagon became hopelessly mired down. Just at that moment a
minister rode up on horsgeback., The man asked him, "Is there a
bottom to this "mud hole'™? 9"ph, yes," replied the minister,
"You Jjust haven't reached it yet!®

Having conquered the forest, the settlers turned their
attention te improving their surreundings, Mr, Clark built a
grist-mill which was later remodeled by Mr. Culver to grind both
corn and wheat., A second one was built by Mr. D. Walters close
%o Venedocia and ex-Governor, Wm. Bebb, erected a sawmill, Their
plows were called "bull plows" and were made entirely of wood.
The first gunsmith was John Heath, John McConn was the first shoe-
maker, A profitable marked in the fur and hoop-pole trade was
carried on with Delphos., Mr. Benjamin Griffin built the first
frame house followed by Mr. Albans who built the first brick
which still stands just south of Venedocia on St. Route 709.

The first couple to be married in the township was Lewis Tomlin-
son and Rachel Boroff.




Soon building and drainage material became important, so
businesses were established to furnish both lumber and tile,
There were sawmills on the Kllis Oliver farm in Section 2, H.

E. Evans in Sec. 12, Adam Stuckey in Sec. 7, Jacob Dibert in
Sec. 18, Charles Knelp Sec. 36 and S. Piassler (sawed the lumber
for the Rossville school) in Sec., 19.

Tile mills were built on the C. R. Hiller farm in Sec. 3,
William Pollock Sec. 1, Edwin Smith Seec. 20, John Goodwin Sec,
25 and A. Holmes.

The settlement continued to develop and in 1861 D, W,
Evans, a son-in-law of Mr. Bebb, took possession of that por-
tion of land now occupied by Venedocia.

When Mr. Evans gave the land, he inserted a clause stating
that should any part of the premises be used for keeping or
selling intoxicating liquors the title would revert to the
original owner, This precedent has been followed by inserting
this condition in nearly all of the deeds executed since,

In 1863, Mr, Evans sold the first lot for building purposes
to Mr. W. E. Jones, who immediately erected a frame bullding.
The next lot was sold to R, J. Whittington and E. K, Evans who-
erected a storeroom and engaged in the mercantile business.

In 187 Mr. E, B. Evans made a survey and sold some lots
upon which several fine dwellings were erected. There were 16
lots staked at this time, The first addition was made in 1880
at which time 31 lots were added on the east and west sidesa of
Main Street, Bebb Street ran west from Main and Plum, with
three lots, ran east from Main. By 1897 there were 73 lots and
the townspeople began talking about incorporation. A petition
was set up which 43 electors signed, Morgan H. Morgan was chosen
spokesman to present it to the County Commissioners, On September
7, 1897, Venedocia was recorded as an incorporated town, with,
at that time, a population of between two and three hundred
people,

The discovery of oil about 1900 brought the typical "boom"
to Venedocia. Many existing businesses expanded and new ones
were established., 0il wells were drilled on the M, N. George
farm in Sec. 12, on the David Morris farm in Sec. 1, on the
David Reese farm in See. 1, on the Everett Jonea farm in Seec., 2,
There were a few wells in York township. Several were drilled in
Jennings township at the same time. Unfortunately it was not a
very rich field and was soon "pumped off,"

In 1903 the Mary Whitling addition was laid out and twelve
new lots were made available, They lay between Plum Street and
College Street, fronting on Main Street,

About 1877, a group of men raised money t¢ be given to the
railroad to bring it to Venedocia. It was very important, for
the farmer needed access to the markets and later the oil men
needed their supplies. Finally the narrow guage Toledo, Delphos
and Burllngton was built. At one time there were four passanger
trains, in addition to the regular freight trains, making regular
stops. This "Clover Leaf"™ was changed to standard guage and
finally taken over by the Norfolk and Western which now carries
only freight.

One of the widely known establishments of Venedocia was the
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livery barn, built in 1907 by W. B. Evans. It was 60 feet wide
and 103 feet long. 100 tons of hay were required to feed the 45
driving horses and 16 teams of work horses, Most of the work
teams were rented out for work in the oil fields. Mr., Webbd Wat-
kins was employed as manager and a number of others, as they

were needed, to care for the horses. It was also, now and then,
necessyry Yo ewploy drivers. Ahs was customary a)) ¥he norses had
nameg and Mrs., Alford Breese recalled that the one she drove as
she went about the community giving pinao lessons was Mable, Two
hearses were maintained, a white one drawn by a team of grays for
the corpse of a young person and a black one, drawn by a black
team, for the corpse of an adult. There was always someone in
attendance at the barn, and usually it was the older son of the
owner, Harries Evans., Tramps also found it a most convenient
place to sleep. It cost one dollar to rent a "rig" to go to
Middle Point or Van Wert and one dollar and fifty cents to go

to Delphos. The stable closed about 1920,

Mr, William C¢. Morgan and Mr, Jones, about 1898, built a
grist mill in Venedocia located at the North end of Main Street.
Assisting in its operation was John C. George with Ed Smith as
miller and Andy Oliver as fireman, In 1903, as the result of a
boliler explosion, the mill was destroyed. Then Mr. Ott Lang re-
built it and employed Jack Elias Jones to manage it, Later he
sold out to Mr. Grant Pollock and his son Kenneth managed it.
Unfortunately it too burned; however, Mr. Young and Mr. Oden-
weller of Delphos rebuilt it and subsequently sold it to the
Van Wert County Farm Bureau., It was then under the management
of Layton Jenkins. Upon his retirement Carl Morgan took over.
He was followed by Edgar Morgan, Then Stanley Pollock operated
it until the Farm Bureau closed it. For a number of years it
was inoperative, In 1973, Everett Koenig bought the elevator
buildings, the ASCS storage bins along with all of the lots
lying west of lots 18 and 19 adjacent to the railroad. These
buildings are now used for storage,.

Morris B, Jones and Brough Joneg operated a comblned drug
and hardware store on the west side of Main Street. They also
did an excellent business selling farm machinery and buggies--
surreys with the fringe on top. This building was destroyed by
fire in 1925, "Morris B." then moved to a briek building which
had been occupied at one time by a Boston Store. It was pur-.
chased from "Morris B's" son, Palmer and his daughter, Edwina
about 1950 by Rudel Good. Shortly after an extensive re-
modeling it was destroyed by fire in 1952. Mr. Good then
erected the building which now stands on the original site, It
is at the present vacant,

. The following notes have been taken from the references
listed, from family records, and conversations with many
individuals.

Margaret A, Chapman, the first Welsh child born in the
Venedocia community was baptized in 1849. She was, also, the
first person married in the Venedoeia church.

The first grist mill was a horse powered mill built by
Jesse Clark, The second mill was built by D. Walters. The .
first sawmill was erected by ex-Governor William Bebb, of
Butler County, near Venedocia, about 1850,
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A Mr, Harry Shaffer owned a tin shop which unfortunately burned.
He then moved to Delphos. Later Mr. Dave Griffin established
another with Albert Uhl as his assistant. :

Several other business operators were Bill Morgan, boiler
maker; J, W. Jones, wagon maker; Mrs. "Sadler” Evans and Mrs,

W, B, Bvans, dressmaker and millinery shops and "Sadler® Evans
a harness shop. Mr, Davis and Tom Evans, tailor shops.

There were, at one time, three grocery stores including
the whittington and Evans general store, a fascinating place
where one could exchange butter and eggs for groceries, yard
good, pins, ribbons and other household necessities. Even-
tually Mr., Henry Uhl operated the only remaining general store
and in 1932 he closed out his stock of domestics continuing
only the grocery items., It was purchased in 1946. Glen Howell
Morgan and Thomas A. Morgan bought into it in 1947. They
eventually erected a new building across the street and moved
the grocery there, They continued to operate it until 1956
when they sold to Bill Morgan. After a short time he sold to
Fr, Courtney who in turn sold to Mr. Good, After Mr, Good's
death it was sold to Lee Lare who operated it until 1975. The
building is now owned by Jack Fox. Now, after over one hundred
years, Venedocia has no grocery store.

In 1917, Mr. Pryse Morgan, Mr,Jack S. Jones and Mr, Henry
Uhl organized a company to furnish electricity. The power was
produced by & diesel driven dynamu located on the lot behind
the present council house. Mr, Gomer Richards was employed as
lineman. The facility was later purchased by the Central Ohio
Power Company and in 1955 it was taken over by the Ohig Power
Company, the present owner, :

In 1902, the Jennings Telephone Company was organized with
Dick O. Evans, president, C. B. Stose, vice president and Wesley
Weaver, secretary-treasurer, Baynton Burnett and Charles Carolus
were employed as linemen, Two exchange offices were set up=--one
in Converse and one in Venedocia, In Venedocia the "Central®
office was located on the second floor over an ice cream parlor
in a building which stood just south of the present Flat Land
Supply building. The office, later moved to the corner of Main
and College Streets, was razed when the Chio Electro Polishing
Company was started. In 1968 the Venedocia exchange was pur-
chased by the United Telephone Company of Ohio, which, at this
time, continues to secrve. :

The Auglaize Post Office was the first post office in York
“ownship, It was located on the Jackson farm in Sec. 32 just
off State Rte. 81. Later offices were established at Venedocia,
Tokio {Jonestown) and Elgin, '

The first postmaster for Venedocia was jir, John Uhl., He
was followed by Mr, "Sadler" Evans who operated a harness shop
in conjunction with the post office, Three Rural Free Delivery
routes ran out of Venedocia. The carriers were Alban Evans,

Bob Thomas, and William C. Morgan. Later one route was divided
between the two and Alban ZTvans and Jenk Davis made the deliv-
ery. Later part of the northwestern section of the township was
assigned to the Van Wert office so only one route was needed for
Venedoecia., Jenk Davis continued the one route. When he re-
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tired Elmer Miller took over the route which is now serviced by
John Evans. "Sadler" Evans served as posimaster for forty-two
years, He was succeeded by Pauline Davis, Zelma Evans and the
current one, Lee Lare, who assumed his duties in 1965.

: The first undertaker was David W, Williams who came to
Venedocia in 1877. Ie was followed by Henry Jones who operated
a furniture store and undertaking establishment on the lot just
south of the David Van Eman residence until about 1930,

There were at one time four doetors: Iir. Owens, surgeon,
Dr, Jenkins, Dr. Davis, and Dr. Morgan, dentist.

Mr. John Uhl operated a cobbler shop and shoe store,

There were several blackamith shops--one operated by D.
Davies, one by John Pritchard, one by Chas. Nesbeitt, and one
by Morgan Thomas. Two supply houses serviced the oil fields.
The three boarding houses were primarily for workers in the oil
fields.

About 1914, Mr. David B. Jones built the cement block duild-
ing located on North Main Street for a garage which was operated
by Lester Burnett and Steve Schobe., It is not now in operation.

Mr. Stephen J. Jones operated a barber shop on Main Street.
He was followed by Prank Hurless who as succeeded by his son
"Bugg®, The building is now occupied by the Ree Beauty Shop
which opened in 1967 as Jan and Ree's, Since 13969, however,
Ree has operated the shop as socle owner, '

In 1950 Mr, Gerald XKoenig established the Ohio Electro
Polishing Company, Inc., in Venedocia. It is located on the
corner of Main and College Streets. His sons, Gerald and Ted
are the present owners and very successful operators of the
company,

In 1947, Everett XKoenig opened a hardware in his house
across the street from the parsonage., In 1966, deciding to
expand he organized the Flat Lands Supply Company and purchased
the building just south of the Post Office for a sales room.

It is, at this time, a very busy and prospercus enterprise,
Because of its historic interest (it is the oldest building,
dating back to the early 1860's) Mr. Koenig has kept the build-
ing intact even to the original potato and vegetable bins.

Now, in 1976, these three businesses along with the Post
Office comprise the commercial activity of this once bustling
community.

Socially there were for a number of years Chapters of
Knights of Pythias, Independent Order of Odd Fellows, and the
Grange. It was largely through the efforts of the Grange that
Rural Free Delivery came to the Venedocia community,

There are three cementeries in York Towmship: Wright,
Goodwin and Venedocia., All are maintained by the York
Trustees.

In 1945, a committee, ingpired by the Rev, Gerald Johnson,
began planning for a memorial for those who had served in the
Armed Forces. This committee, composed of Joe Williams, ILloyd
Reese and Bob Morris, selected a site and purchased the turee
acres from D, B. Evans adjacent to the molgr part of the
Venedocia cemetery. The Piqua Granite Company was contacted
and the present design was chosen. Dedicated in 1947, it is
titled "An Altar of Peacs" and bears this inscription: In
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memory and in tribute to the members of this community who so
nobly served our nation in Her several Wars. The Veterana'
Memorial Park trustees hold the deed and are responsible for
its care and upkeep. Since originally the last conflict listed
was World War II the present trustees thought that those who
fought since then should also be listed. The idea was submitted
to the churches and they agreed, The trustees, Clarence Reese,
Lee Lare, and Howard Richards then appointed a committee rep-
resenting the churches and the township trustees, From Zion,
Mrs. Latimer Breese and Mrs. Edwin Swygart. From Salem, Paul
Ashton and Hugh Pugh and Warren Morris from the trustees. They
are now in the process of selecting a suitable addition to the
existing structure. The white marble columns, standing pic-
turesque knoll, framed by the majestic green trees, form an
inspiring scene for the annual Memorial Day Services.

In 1961, A Lions' (Club Chapter was organized with twenty-
four charter members., Middle Point was the sponsoring club,
The charter members were:

John C. Lloyd, Jr., Pres, Jack Fox, lat Vice Pres.
David W, Pollock, Treas. Carl Smith, Sec,
Latimer Breese, Dir, Lawrence Vandemark, Dir,
David H. Evans, Lion Tamer Donald Richardas, Tail
D. Harries Evans Hugh O, Pugh Twister
Daniel Foster Olen Coil -~

W. @verett Jones : Howard Richards

Stanley Pollock ‘ Ellis Iloyd

Marvin Evans Paul Price

Gerald Koenig Edward W, Willians

Fred Taylor "Merle Wilkins

Howard Rauch Edgar Morgan

The Club has grown over the years and contributed much to
the community., They now have a modern, completely equipped club
house which is used for many activities., It may be rented for
private parties such as family reunions and alumni class dinners,
Last year it was-the scene of a most successful community dinner.
They sponsor a Christmag treat and Easter egg hunt. They have
built a tennis court and supply various other recreational equip-
ment. They also participate in the Lions' National eye glasses
program. The current officers are: Everett Koenig, Pres.; Bebb
Jones, lst V. Pres.; Bob Patterson 2nd V. Pres.; Vaughn Morgan,
3rd V. Pres.; Paul Price, Treas; David H. Evans, Sec,; Paul
Ashton, lion tamer, Ronald Owens, tail twister.

In 1946, a group met to discuss forming a permanent com-
mittee to improve and administer a ball diamond for the benefit
of the community. They organized the Venedocia Recreational
Committee with Henry Uhl, Earl Monroe, Jenk Davis, Glen H,
Morgan, Manfor Lytle, Elliot Jones, David W, liorris, Vaughn
Morgan and Rev, Gerald Johnson, They improved the grounds,
built bleachers, erected fence and eventually installed lights.
The refreshment stand was painted and improved. The park is
continuously in use during the baseball season, The current
directors are: Wally Smith, Hayden Williams, John C. Morris,
and Dick Zirkle,
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One custom which was common . - e Y-
to all the early grocery stores - A

in the area was the maintenance of
a huckster wagon, This was, at
first, a light, covered, horse-
drawn wagon stocked with a selec=-
tion of groceries, which was
driven around the community,
stopping at each residence. The
lady of the house would come out
to make her selection and per-
haps trade some eggs or poultiry
for her purchases. Later the wago
was replaced by a truck, but the

shopping remained Jjust as inter- MRS. DAN 0. EVANS
esting. By 1940, the practice was
discontinued,

The present Mayor of Venedocla 1s Robert Louth, *he clerk,
Lee Lare, president of the ecouneil, Paul Friece. Council mem=-
bers: Ronald Richardson, Richard Coil, Vernon Hobbs, =Zveretti
¥oenig, and Robert Beerman. According to the 1970 census, the
population is about two hundred.

) YORK TOWNSHIP RESIDENTS
OF VENEDOCIA, OHIO, 1275

Hr, & Mrs, Richard Coil
Mr, & Mrs. Hichard Wagoner
My, & Mrs, Mark Sipusic
Mrs. Mary Evans

Mr., & Mrs, Earl Davis

Fr. & Mrs, Bill EBinnicn
Mr. & !rs. Fmil Schnelle
Mr, & Mras. Ed Ringwald
Mr. & Mra. James Francis
Mra. Bertha Davis

Dewey Diss

Mr. & Mrs. Layton Jenkins
. & Mrs. Faul Ashton

I'r, & Mrs. Robert Teerman
Mrs. Ruby Jones

My, & Mra, Billie Binnion
Mrg, Fdith Williams

Y, & Mrg., Willism Tuteler
Richard Gray

r, & Mra, Lee Lare

¥r., & I'ra, Eurice Durnetbs
lMrs. Hyrtle Zvans

Mr. & lMrs. sarl honroe

_ i Mr, & lrs, Paul Price
T e SR T Leonard lMillisor

T¥0 ROOM SCHOOLHOUSE ;'__1‘. E: ;--Is. Harold _Javis
Elgin and Venedocia Each Had One r. & ixs. Jesse Perec




VENEDOCIA WELSH GLEE CLUBS

One of thne outstanding characteristics of the Welsh people
ig their love of singing and Venedoeia is no exeeption. Tlusie
has been an inportant part of their lives from the first set-
tlement when the singing of hymns was always a part of their
worship service. They encouraged soloists, but placed preat
enphasis on choral singing. :

One of the early institutions that did much to encourage
singing and the arts and crafts was the Disteddfod., This was
a day devoted to competition for singers, readers, translators,
pennen, photographers, Imitters, and woodworkers.

A program for a 1917 Eisteddfod listed 54 numbers for com-
petition, 19 of them musical numbers. The program began about
nine o'eclock in the morning and often was not completed before
midnight.

e first Venedoeia Male Chorus was organized about 1230
under the direction of Bob Thomas. The group, under the di-
rection of guest conductor Hugh COwena, went to Seattle, Wash-
ington, to compete in the National Tisteddfod about 1961, win-
ning first place.

VENEDOCIA MALE CHORUS |

Left to right, Row ], Roy Morgan, Howard Richards, Row 2, Howell Reese,
Ambrose Breese, Heydn Morgan, Director, Hayden Jones, Howard Hughes,
Gwenlyn Jones, Maldwyn Jones, Luther Jones, Row 3, Rufus Thomas, Edward
Jones, Stanley Roberts, Reese Morris, Lester Cole, Wendell Morgan, Lay-
ton Jenkins, Talford Morgan, Osborne Jones, Cradog 'Bill® Jones, Row 4
Gordon Jenkins, Elliot Morris, Talmage Hughes, Richard Owens, Rufus
Morris, Gaylord Jones, Daniel Evans, Herbert Davis, Harris Evans, Glen
Owens, Joe Williams,

In 1897, the Venedoeia Male Choruas purchased the frame
church, which was being replaced by the present stone struc-
ture, They named it the Cenbrian Hall and set it on the next
lot north of the present cnurch.



a @vory is told of Yob 'iomas t&-inz the zroup to Columbus,
Chio, to compete in tre OState Zisteddfod. Ie had to have exactly
30 oany mnen. On arrival ne Tound he was one short, so he went
out on the stireet and got one, brought him in, told him where to
stand, and then gaid, "Don't you dare open your mouth."

Jim Jones beceme the next director and the chorus continued
until about 1914 wihen interest began to wane. This group jok=-
ingly referred to themselves as the "cornhuskers:.

Ten, in 1918, the Cambrian (Glee Club was organiszed at the
instigation of a quartet compoged of Howard Hughes, Gwenlyn
Jones, Haydn Jones and Haydn lMorgan. They had been very active
singing at various churches and civie organizations throughout
Van Wert County and sensed the desirability of forming a glee
club. Thirty-six young, single men joined the chorus. They
choge Haydn Morgan for their director and Austin Pollock for
thelr accompanist. '‘hey gave many concerts in the towns of
the surrounding area even traveling to Columbus for a concert.
Soloists were: Daniel Zvans, ILuther Jones, Maldwyn Jones,
deese lorris, Glen Owens and Austin Pollock, In 1920, Haydn
lorgan left the community to enter a wider field of music and
Oswald Jones took over the duties of conductor.

The custom of a yearly reunion on the Saturday night be-
fore Labor Day began in 1930 and continues to the present time,
Until 1956 the group presented one number during the morning
worship service, They were forced to discontinue thia practice
in 1556 because of the difficulty of getting adegquate rehearsal
time and their voices were not as flexible as in earlier years,
i‘aldwyn Jones, however, continued to represent the group each
year by singing a solo, a practice he continued until his death,

After a slight 1lull in musical activity, Mr. Alford Breese,

in 1930, organized a group and they presented a minstrel show
on the stage at York School,

MALE CHORIE AT WINONA LAKE ABOUT 1900

Left to right, Row ], Dick 0. Evans, Rev. D. E. Jones, Fred Morris, Steve |
Jones, Alice Jones, Bob Thomas, Director, Johm Russel Evans, Wm. Evans, Un- .
known, Row 2, Jim Jones, Morgan Thomas, Howell Jones, Dan 0. Evans, Rev.

Gordon, Brough Jones, Unknown, Unknown, Unknown, Wm C. Morgan, Heber Rich-

ards, Row 3, Gene Humphries, Wm Morgan, Jr., Alban Evans, Unknown, Evan J.

Morgan, Unknown, Ben Jones, Henry Jones, Bob Evans, Unknown, Unknown, Merk

Evans, Evan Morgan, Dick 8. Jones, Bill Reese, Griff Jones, Unknown, Unknown,

Unknown.



DOCIALITES

In the fall of 1945, a new singing group was organiged in
Venedocia, It was made up of the members of the Alpha Kappa .
Sunday School Class, their husbands, the Young Men's Class and
their wives, making a total of about fifty-one. They chose the
name Docialites and elected Elliot Jones, Pres.; Marguerite
Evang Fissel, V. Pres.; Edgar L. Morgan, Sec.-Treas.

After much discussion they decided to present a minstrel
show with R. Paul Jones as general director, Kathryn Good as
nusical director, and Marguerite Evans as rehearsal pianist,
The show was presented in the Cambrian Hall on Thursday, Pri-
day, Dec. 27, 28, 1945 and January 3, 1946, End men were El-
liot Jones, ddgar L, Morgan, Manford Lytle, Paul Ashton, Ervin
Jones, and R, Paul Jones. Interlocutor, Vaughn Morgan, Don
Underwood's Orchestra of Van Wert furnished the accompaniment.

Mr. Roland Evans, District Manager of the Wapakoneta Pro-
duction Credit Ass'n. was so pleased with the performance that
he gave them a contract for five performances: Van Wert, Lima,
Sidney, Bellefontaine, and St. Marys. ‘

On Friday, Dec. 27, 1946 and Jan. 2, 3, 1947 their second
show opened. R. Paul Jones, general director, David E, Jones,
musical director, Kathryn Good, rehearsal director, and Mar-
guerite Fissel, Alliene Myers, rehearsal pianists.

By January 1948 a third production was ready for present-
ation. This one was a "straight" musical program under the
direction of David E. Jones. Soloists were: Glen Owens, Lee
Lare, Gerald Johnson, and Ivan Bailey. .

The next production "Gypsy Rover" a musical, was produced
in 1950 with Carl Morgan as director. Eleanor Evans Morgan and
Tommy Morgan played the romantic leads supported by R. Paul
Jones, Marilyn Evans Stockton, Vaughn Morgan, Dorothy Williams
Allen, Marvin Evans, Manford Lytle, Mary Beerman, Ivan Bailey
with the Docialite Chorus.

For their fifth production the Docialites again chose a
minstrel, which unfortunately for their enthusiastic patrons,
was their last performance, Appearing in the chorus were
Violet Ashton, Latalia Jones, Donna Morgan, Margaret Davis,
Pat Hanley (pianist) Eleanor Morgan, Miss Zigg, Marcella
Richards, liyrtle Jones, Ethel Lloyd, Pauline Davis, Helen
Lytle, Marcile Lare, Georgiana Miller, Gwen Evans, Mary Beer-
man, Elsie Morris, llargaret Good, R. Paul Jones, Vaughn Morgan,
wommy Morgan, David J. Iivans, Rudel Good, Lee Lare, Marvin
Evans, David H. Evans, Robert Beerman, John L, Reese, John
Svans, The end men: Charles Joroff, Donald Richards, David
W, lorris, Manford Lytle, Iloyd Miller and Earl Davis and
Interlocutor, Harvey Albrignt.

The Venedocia=-Zion Brotherhood organization had owned the
Cambrian Hall for a number of years., In 1959, because of the
expense of upkeep and high taxes they decided to sell the
building to a Mr. Blaine who razed the building. Some of the
lumber was purchased by Frank Rigdon who was at that time
building a house to replace his which had been destroyed by
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fire. And so the next to the last public, historic landmark
disappears from the Venedoclia scene.
In 1929, Mr, Alford Breese produced a local minstrel show,

18t DOCIALITE MINSTREL SHOW 1945-46

15t row (seated) left to right, Ervin Jones, Elliott Jones, Paul Ashton, Vaughn Morgan, Inter-
locutor, Menford Lytle, Edgar L. Morgan, R. Paul Jones, ond row, Eloise Evans, Pauline Miller,
Jane Morris Bates, Romaine Owens, Grace Jones, Ree MWorgan, Margaret Davis, Mildred McDonald,
Helen Bolton, Ann Johnson, Mary E, Beerman, Maxine Morgan, 3rd row, Dorothy Roenig, Evelyn
Reese, Mildred Owens, Helen Lytle, Margaret Good, Dorothy L. Allen, Kathryn Good, Latalia
Jones, Grace Evans, Marguerite Fissel, Ruby Jones, Elsie Morris, Lila Monroe, 4th row, Pal-
mer Morris, John L. Reese, David J. Evins, Richard Owens, Robert Beerman, Gerald Johnson,
Eugene Good, Tom Monroe, Glenn Owens, Marvin Evans, Palmer Davis, Thomas L. Evans, Everett

Koenig, Ira McDonald.

2nd DOCIALITE MINSTREL 1946-47
geated, Ruth Williams Evans, Martha Morris Droll, Bertha Evans Now, Gwen George Evans, Ind
row, Helen Breese Lytle, Marguerite Evans Pissel, Doris Morgan, David Hugh Evans, Vaughn
Morgan, Interlocutor, Latalis Runion Jones, Mary Evelyn Jones Beerman, Pauline Davis Miller,
{Don Underwoods Orchestra). Don Underwood, Elsie Morris (Mrs. Pelmer), Evelyn Reese, Marcile
Millisor Lare, Hilda Medaugh Morris, McDonald (Mrs, Ira), Grace Showalter Jones, Romaine Yoh
Owens, Helen Bolton, Evelyn Jonmes (Mrs. Ellis). (Orchestre Wembers), 3rd row, Rill Morgan,
Hayden Lloyd, Don Fissel, John J. Morris, Rev, Gerald Johnson, Dorothy Williams Allen, David
Allen, Bob Errrman, Richard Owens, Everett Koenig., John Luther Reese, Mrs. Thomas Morris,
last row, John Evans, Manford Lytle, Don Richaerds, Lee Lare, David Wayne Morris, David E.
Jones, Marvin Evans, Paul Ashton, Edgar Howel, Paul Dick Jones, Palmer Morris,



i W
GYPSY ROVER

Front, left to right, Nancy Owens, Bev., Koemig?, Sharon Mchonald, 2nd, Geno McMasters, Q,’ fer
Reese Davis, Tom Jones, Adult, Karl Morgan, Pat Hanley, R. Paul Jones, Marilyn Evans, i
Vaughn Morgan, Dorothy Lee, Elinore Morgan, Tommy Morgan, Marvin Wergan, Manford Mer— /= ¢ A V5
&an, Mary Evelyn Mer@in, Ivan Bailey, John Luther, Marcella, Violet, Ethel Jane, Carql T e
Sue Waltz, Mary Louise B, Alice Bailey, Hilda Morris, Eloise E., Margaret Davis, Helen .fr.

Lytle, Donna Morgan, Latalia Jones, Mildred McDonel, Doris Morgan, Anna Lee. Rox Rai. 3‘45 €r M
1ey, Back, Hayden L,, David W., Dawvid Allen,

Uon Richards, John Evans, Hobert Beerman,
David Hugh, Edegar L.

Seated left to right, Charlie Boroff, Dopald Richardz, David W, Morris, Harvey Albright,
Manford Lytle, Lloyd Miller, Ear]l Davis, 2pd row, Pauline Miller, Melen Lytle, Marcile
lare, Georgianne Miller, Owen Evans, Mary Beerman, Elsie Morris, Margaret Good, 3rd row,
Violet Ashton, Latalis Jones, Dopna Morgan, Margaret Davis, Pat Hanley, Eleanor Evans,
Miss Zigg, Marcella Richards, Myrtle Jones, Ethel Jane Llow

d, 4th row, R. Paul Jones,
Vaughn Morgan, Tommy Morgan, Hayden Lloyd, Rudel Good, Lee Lare, Marvin Evans, David
Hugh Evans, Robert Beerman, John Luther Reese, John Evans,



CHURCHES

A HISTORY OF THE UNITED BRETHREN IN CHRIST CHURCH
Elgin, Ohio — 1859-1975

Tire United Brethren in Christ Church at Elgin springs from
& pioneer people who settled in the southeastern section of
York Township in the early years of the 19th century. Life was
primitive, itransportation was minimal; there were no stores, no
railroad, not even & crosasroad. The only road in the area was
one which angled from Delphos to Mercer by way of Venedocia and
Mendon, Other routes were simply bypaths marked by trees blazed
to indicate the course, Men and women had to work long hard
hours Just to stay alive and contact with neighbors was rare,
In a history of the Elgin church which was written in 1921 vy
Willard D, Alspaugh he observes, "in conditions like these the
hearts of men then probably more than today had a desire for
spiritmnal food and a place where they might be able to con-
gregate and worship God together.®

Thie desire led first to the people gathering in homes,
but by 1850 they were holding services in a log schoolhouse
which was located near the northeast cormer of the present
intersection of State Route 81 and the Sands Road. Official
organization of the group as the Mount Zion United Brethren
Church oeccured in 1859. Rev., Daniel Hindricks served as
pastor to the eighteen charter members., The preachers of
this era were circuit riders and the Mt. Zion Church was on
the same circuit with the Hopewell United Brethren Church
which was located one mile north of Converse. Of interest is
the fact that people of the Methodist and United Brethren
denominations built the Hopewell Church together, each group
using the building for its own services. Later the Methodists
80ld their interest and moved to their present location in
Converse which was originally named Centerville.

By 1867 the people of Mt. Zion decided that they wanted a
"proper* church building and they proceeded to build one, using
their own skills and brawn. The logs for the 24 by 30 foot
structure ware hewed by Jehu Goodwin from cottonwood trees
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which grew on the site where the Elgin elevator now gtands.
After the logs were all cut they were hauled to a location
across the road and south of the schoolhouse which had been
serving as a meeting house, The roof of the building was
gplit out of timber, completely handmade, There were two
front doors, one for the men and one for the women, The
interior boasted a raised platform and an Amen corner., Nearly
all of the work for the construction of the church was donated,
but it is a matter of record that Aunt Amy Parrott gave a cow
toward paying for the planing of the seats, a task which was
performed by a Mr. Slentz.

When the building was completed and the time came for
dedication, it was given the name of Mt. Zion United Brethren
Cottonwood Church., People came to the services on horseback,
in wagons drawn by oxen, and even more often on foot, using
hickory K torches to light their way through the forest. The
only light in the building itself was furnished by tallow
candlegs., There were no mugical ingtruments, but there was a
singing master--Johnson Van Eman, whose home was referred to
as the "home of the preachers," Preachihg services were held
the year round and Sunday School in the summer, This was ac-
complished without benefit of quarterlies and study aids; all
lessons were taken directly from the Bible. The preachers,
most of whom rode horseback from Van Wert to fill thedir ap-
pointments, were paid a very small salary.

"This log church served the community well and, according
to Mr., Alspaugh, "They had many good meetings in the old log
church, where the power of God was made manifest at many dif-
ferent times." In 1891 it became necessary to build & new
church and the deserted log church stood as a landmark for
many years. The last service held there was a sunripe prayer
meeting in the summer of 1917 during a Christian Endeavor
Convention, Shortly thereafter the old log Cottonwood Church
was torn down,

When a new church was built in 1891 a new location was
obtained in the southwest part of the town, on the northwest
corner of Van Eman and Washington Streets. The frame bui-
lding, 32 by 48 feet, was capped by a belfry. The bell which
wag installed then is still in use in the present church, hav-
ing pealed out its invitation to worshipers for nearly eighty- -
five years. An innovative feature of the interior was the
lighting system. Gasoline mantle lamps were used, but the
fuel was supplied from a central source. The building was
dedicated in the fall of 1891 by Bishop Floyd. The Rev. J.
M., Sherer was the pastor, Twenty-three names appear on the
membership roll in August of 1891; two years later there were
forty-six names, Some of those names are Benjamin and Char-
lotte Goodwin, Isaac and Mary Ann Slantz, Charles A, and
Ilizabeth Roller, Thomas and Ida Owens, Mary J. Wentz, Roz~
illa Thomas, Silas Rice, David Hughs and others who were
important citigens of the area,

Church records for the years 1903 to 1911 are missing,
but it was probably during this time that the church became
known as the Elgin class rather than the [it. Zion charge.

It became a part of the circuit which was made up of the
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Monticello, Mt. Union, and Elgin churches, all of whom were
served by the same pastor. Thus it became his duty to preach
three sermons each Sabbath,

The year of 1924 became a year of decision for the
seventy-five members whose name then appeared on the church
roll, The congregation had been bequeathed a sum of money
by Mr. Bill Jones of Van Wert. So far as can be determined
Ir. Jones was not a member of the Elgin Church., His interest
gstemmed from the fact the Mrs. Ida (Goodwin) Owens, a lifelong
member, was his niece and as a girl had spent much time in his
home, Mr, Jones! will provided that to receive the money there
must be a new church building in construction by December 31,
1924, One can imagine the discussions which must have dev-
eloped. The chief occupation of the membership was farming
and, though they probably lived comfortably, cash was not
readily avallable and it would take a great deal of faith to
embark on such a venture. Late in 1924 the decision was made
to build and since the new church was to be on the same loc-
ation, it was necessary to tear down the old building. Vol-
unteer labor from members and non-members alike aided in its
demolition, All usable material was salvaged to be used in
the construction of the new building. Before the year ended
the foundation was laid, even though special means had to be
used to keep the cement from freezing in the wintry temper-
atures.

Church trustees were Gettys Goodwin, Clyde Goodwin,
William J. Owens, Eltie E. Welker, and Harvey M. Zimmerman.
Mr. Welker's sons recall that their father made a scale
model of the proposed building and that he was very much a
part of its planning and actual construction. A Mr, John
Wells was hired as the builder but nearly all labor was
donated. The plans called for the 32 by 48 foot dimension
of the original building to be used as the base for the
sanctuary, and to this was added the pulplt area to the
north and the 30 by 48 foot space to the south which served
as an entry way and for classrooms. Forty-eight foot timbers
used in framing the astructure are said to have been obtained
from the woods of Thomas J. Owens who lived two miles from
the church and had been a member since 1891 and its Sunday
School sguperintendent for twenty-five years. A basement
housed a coal furnace and a Delco plant furnished light for
the interior. Specially designed arched windows were placed
in the east and west ends of the sanctuary and the pews which
had been purchased from a church in Allentown, Ohio were del-
ivered -to Elgin by wagon, The pulpit was the one which had
seen service for so many years in the old church,

When the old bell in its new belfry rang out its invit-
ation on a bright autumn Sunday in 1925, the worshipers must
have listened with a feeling of prayerful pride and thanks-
giving, The occasion was the dedication of the new church-
building with Bishop W. E. Musgrave as the official in
charge. Although Rev, Charles Weyer was pastor during the
planning and building of the church, it was Rev. Preston E.
Horst who took part in the dedicatory service. He had been
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assigned to the Zlgin charge in August. The money reguired to
wipe out the building debt was oversubscribed on the dedication
day, so a congregation's step in faith was more than rewarded.

1925 seems to have been the peak year in the history of
the "lgin United Brethren in Christ Church so far as enrollment
is concerned, Ninety names appeared on the membership roster
for that year, During the rest of the 1920's and through the
1930t's the nunmber fluctuated, ranging from sixty to ninety, A
glance into the records of the 1940's shows a definite downward
trend in membership. Doubtless much of this was caused by the
war and its subsequent redistribution of young people, Higher,
education can also take some of the credit; returning service
people took advantage of the GI Bill and trained for jobs which
took them to far parts of the country and even into foreign
lands, As these young men and women noved away Elgin suffered
the loss of many vpotential members, as did most country churches.
But during these years there remained a core of faithful people
who maintained the church, supporting and fostering the beliefs
upon which the Christian Caurch is founded. Pamily names which
appear during these years are M spauch, Bassett, Bolton, Boroff,
Bowsher, Galloway, Guodwin, Hughs, Morris, Nolan, Oberlitner,
Owens, Welker, Wilkins and others. Some of the preachers who
served are Howard A, Anderson, M, I. Burkholder, W, ¢. Davies,
Clarence Cosey, Paul Graham, Delovd Garwood, G, Winson ILed-
better, Carlyle Seiple, G, M, Sill, and C., N. Van Gundy.

By the late 1960's the patient prayers and faithfulness of
the congresation and its pastors seemed to be reaping a reward,
Attendance at all services was inereasing, growing numbers of
children and teenarers were being drawn into the youth program,
new families with young children were coning, a group of mig-
sion-ninded wonen was flourishing, and the facilities of the
church were being overcrowded. ©“he need for more space for
church activities were repeatedly brought before the people by
Hlarvin Velker, superintendent of the Sunday School, On July
15, 1973, the congrecation voted to build a fellowship hall.

4 building committee was appointed, plans were drawm up by
Rienard Welker, a contractor was hired, groundbreaking cere-
monies were lield in March of 1974, and construction was under-
way., On November 10, the new classroom/fellowship facility
was dedicated witn Rev. Howard Anderson as the guest speaker,
lev, Carey G. Knittle was and is 8till the resident pastor.

An outstanding job was verformed by the building committec
vhich planned for and oversaw the construction. These men are
Chalrnan llarvin Yeller, Richard 3olton, Larry Bowsher, Larry
Welker, and .icherd VWellker. Individuals =nd organizations
within the church have supplied necessary items which were
not covered in the building budget. The costs of the large
folding doors, of a new piano, of the window draperis, of
foldinz +tables and chairg, of larze kitchen appliances, of
new cleaning ecquimment nave &ll been underwritten by indiv-
idvals., The youth organization donated noney to purchase new
lichts for the sanctuary and the Women's liissionary Association
nag suonlied the cabinets for the ititchen. lours of time have
also been given freely to make this drean of a beautiful new
- fecility a reality, Other dreans are now beginning to reach
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their culmination, That magic number of ninety which marked
the high attendance in 1925 would soon be surpassed, Eighty-
five percent of the debt has been paid and there is a rising
hope that the indebtedness can be wiped out by year's end.
This is being made possible by the generous and unselfish
giving of friends in the community as well as by regular
supporters and members of the church.

When Mr. Alspaugh wrote his history of the Elgin United
Brethren in Christ Church fifty-four years ago, his concluding
paragraph read, "...we would say that the United Brethren
Church at Elgin has always stood with the community in sickness
and sorrow. She has rejoiced with those who rejoice; she has
mourned with those who mourn; to those who have had to lay
away loved ones, she has always extended her sympathy; she has
prayed with dying men and women., If we would dare venture a
prophecy we would say that if the United Brethren Church in
Elgin or any other church anywhere else wants to prosper
spiritually and build up the community in which it stands, its
people must keep close to the cross, but on the under side of
it, and not be afraid to lift up the Holy Nazarene, who suf-
fered, bled and died upon the cross for us all.,"

His words were true in 1921, they are still true in 197bL.
Researched by Richard and Judy Welker - October, 19/5.

KINGSLEY
UNITED METHODIST
CHURCH

The Kingsley Methodist Church, which is now situated on
the northwest corner of the intersection of Ohio 709 and the
Mendon Road, was first organizged in 1869, Mr. David Thomas
and others organized a church class which met in Dibert's
school house with Mr, F. Ross as leader, Iiembers of the
class were Mr, and Mrs, David “homas, Mr., and Mras. L. F.
Rose, Mr, and Mrs. R. F. Ross, IMr. and lrs, Wm Clemons,

Mr. and Mrs. Sam Roland, Mrs. Lydia Ross and Odessa.

After meeting for two years in the school house the
clags decided to build a church since there was none to be
reached conveniently by horse and buggy.

In 1870 they began the erection of a house for church
purposes. It was a white wooden structure estimated to cost
$500,00, with the members contributing the labor. Wm Clemons
was the carpenter in charge. The building committee was con-
posed of David Thomas, L. F. Ross, and James Bevington.

When finished in the fall of 1871, David Thomas, founder
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of the church named it XKingsley.

“he church with an estimated seating capacity of 250 or
300 was 30 by 45 feet, There were three windows on each side
of the building. Two doors on the south side, one for the men
and one for the women. Simple pews of ash divided the single
large room into three sections of seats separated by aisles
leading from each dcor. The center section of seats was div-
ided along the center of the building by a low partition. The
women sat on the east side of this partition and the men on
the west.

"he total cost of the building and furnishings was $1,200,00
of which the Ladies'! Aid furnished ,;600.00.

In the fall of 1871 dedication services were held in charge
- of the Rev, Samuel loberts assisted by the Rev. James Clemons.

The -first revival services were held in the church in the
winter of 1871~72., There were seventy conversions as a result
of these services thirty-five oI whom Joined the church,

The Sunday School was organigzed in 1890 with the following
officers: Superintendent, V, D, Clippinger; Assistant, George
Clemons; secretary, Gertie Bevington Waltz; assistant, Emma
Rowland Ireland; treasurer, Mike Geary; chorisgter, James B.
Harvey; assistant, James Faulkner; librarians, Emmett Holmes
and Mina Ross Jones. -

In 1907 under the leadership of Rev. Wisely plans began
for a new building., Work soon began and the beautiful church
which now stands on the original site was dedicated in the fall
of 1908, Rev, Wright was pastor at that time, The dedication
services were in charge of Rev. A, A, Thomas. The trustees
were John Ireland, S. H. Flohra, W, H. Rowland, J. W. Reese,
and J. A. Jones.

The building committee: Wm Dibert, J. F. Price and Andy
Harp.

Mueh of the labor was donated by members of the church
with some of the other men of the community assisting,

In 1965, as a result of the tornado which razed the church
on Palm Sunday, Walnut Grove lMethodist Churech congregation
Joined the Kingsley congregation.

In June, 1966, work on the Annex to the church was begun. .
The dedication service was held on 3Zunday, April 16, 1967.

The trustees for 1975 are: Hugh Rauch, chairman, Dale
Profit, Owen Rank, lobert Patterson, Hwight Rhoades, Robert
Ries, Harry Neat, John Schwartz and Lyle Dougal,

The Sunday School superintendent is Dale Profit and the
pastor is the Rev. John Boyd. _

--Tena Wilkins

SALEM UNITED PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

The Salem Presbyterian Church of Venedocia has an inter-
esting and inspiring heritage, Founded by hardy, God-fearing
pioneers it continues after one hundred and twenty-eight years
to be the religious inspiration for the community,
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The very first church meetings were held in the log cabin
homes of the three families who had arrived in 1848, On Sunday
morning at 10 o'clock they held & "preaching" meeting. The men
took turms opening the meeting by having a hymn, reading from
the scripture and a prayer. Mr. Eebb or Mr, Morris would then
read a sermon from a volume of sermons. Mr, Bebb owned one by
Rev. Charles and Mr, Morris had one that had been published in
Liverpool, The meeting closed with a hymn and a prayer. At
two o'clock Sunday School met under the direction of Mr. Bebb
who had trained under the Rev, Charles of Bala, Wales, All
of the services were, of course, in Welsh.

So the first Welsh Calvanistic Methodist Church began.

The first Welsh sermon preached by a regular minister was
delivered in June 1848, by Rev. Michael Jones of Bala. From
time to time after that many ministers visited the settlement,

Mr, and Mrs, William Bebb and three children, Mr. and lrs.
Richard Jervis, Mr. and Mrs. David Owens, Mr, and lNrs., Zdward
J. Jones, and Mr, David I, Jones comprised the membership of
the first church. Within the next two years David Owens,
Edward Jones, Robert Richards, David Hughes, Roland Evans,
Richard Evans, D, J. Jones, D. Davis, John Richards, John
M. Jones, J. J. Jones and their families, all coming from
Wales, were added to the membership.

The first church building was erected in 14851, 1t was =&
frame building 20 by 30 feet located across the street Trom
the present church. The dedication sermons were preached by
th: Reverends Robert Williams and Evan S. Jones of Jackson,
ﬂh ﬂ.

Several more Welsh settlers arrived during the vears
1850=1852,



In 1853, the first full time minister, Rev. Hugh Pugh,
began a service to the community which lasted for twelve years,
Leaving here in 1865 for Sugar Creek, Putnam County where he
served until his death in 1878, He was followed by Rev. J, P.
Morgan who served for seventeen years, 1865 to 1882,

In 1866, under the pastorate of Rev, Morgan a second church
was built on the lot where the present church stands.

An accident occured at the raising of this church, but
marvelously no lives were lost. When in the act of lifting the
heavy roof timbers into position, the beams on which the workmen
were standing broke and eight men, mingled with plank and pike-
poles, fell...40 feet among the joists below. Miraculously all
escaped with their lives., The men were Rev. J. P. Morgan, D. W.
Evans, William E., Jones, Hugh B. Evans, Jonathan Jones, William
Finfrock, David M, Jones and John Breese.

The.Rev, Hugh Davis came in 1885, but served only one year,
It was during his tenure that the first manse was built, It
stood just north of the church. He was followed by Rev. Vaughn
Griffith who came in 1886 to serve until 1889. 1In 1890, Rev.
Thomas Roberts came and he served until 1895,

In 1890, twenty members withdrew from Salem to form the
Bethel Church. It, too, was Welsh Calvinistic Methodist and was
located on the Wren-Landeck Road at the Jones-Hughes intersection.
This church and the Horeb church shared the same minister. There
were at one time two other churches, one on the Jonestown, Wren-
Landeck crossing and one on the Brodnix Road on the farm now
owned by Don Pissel. These.two were BEnglish Methodist Evange-
lical,

In 1897, the Salem congregation and their minister Edward
Roberts, who had come to the church in 1895, began to consider
& mor¢e modern church. A building commititee composed of Rev,
Roberts and Messers, Thomas Alban, John (. George, Maurice B.
Jones, William E. Jones, Edward R. Hughes, John S. Breese,
William J. Bebb, John W. Jones, David T. Jones, John H, Reese,
Richard M. Evans, David B. Jones, J. Pryse Morgan, William C,.
Morgan, Richard O. Zvans, and Dr. David Davis.

The committee decided that the best loeation was the lot on
which the current church stood so they decided to sell the bui-
lding. It was purchased and moved to a lot just north of the
church by the Venedocia Male Chorus.

The committee accepted the plans submitted by architects
Wing and Mahurin of Fort Wayne, Ind., The contract was let to
Mr, J. S. Zook of Van Wert, for $11,149.57.

Many of the beautiful stained glass windows are memorial
windows. The large center one to the east was given in memory
of the first three pioneer families. :

The work was completed on time and the church was dedicated
on October 1b-16, 1898, Taking part in the dedication services
were the Reverends Edward Roberts, J. P. Morgan and Daniel Evans
Jones of Venedocia; H, W. Griffith of Cineinnati, Ohio: William
W. Reese, H. R, Evans, of Cambria, Wisconsin; and Dr., William
James of Manchester, England,

In 1900, a lovely modern brick manse was built on the lot
next to the church and is still in excellent condition,
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In September, 1914, Dr., Richard J, Williams became pastor
of the Salem and Zion churches. He had hbeen born and educated
in Wales before coming to this country. He was followed in
1923, by Rev, William Jones who served until his retirement
in 1931, 1In June, 1936, Rev. William T. Jones was installed
as the pastor for the Salem and Zion Churches serving until
1942, Rev, Gerald R, Johnson became pastor in 1943, He
served until 1948, Rev., William G, Cha.mers was installed in
1949, serving qnly one year. In 1951, Rev., Ellis Lloyd became
the pastor serving until 1962, Rev, James G. Patterson was
installed., He served until 1968. Rev, George Witmer began
his ministry with Salem~Zion Churches serving until May, 1973.
The Rev, Von Giessler is currently serving the churches as a
stated-supply pastor.

There have been gome improvemente to the church over the
years. The basement was excavated in 1952 and there is now a
completely modern kitchen, heating system and assembly roonm
which is also used for Sunday School classes.

The Sunday School has been an integral part of the rel-
igious education from the very beginning. This instruction,
along with communicants' classes and sermons, was conducted
entirely in Welsh; however, as time passed more and more of
the services were conducted in English. Dr, ¥W. 7. Jones was
the last minister to preach regularly in Welsh.on the first
Sunday of the month and eventually he discontinued the
- practice,

On November, 1964, a gift of 25 Schulmerich bronze cast
handbells were given to the Salem Church in memory of Thomas
A, Morgan, by his family, In 1969, Mr,., and Mrs, Layton Jen-
kins gave thirteen additional bells in memory of both of their
parents, making a total of 38 bells covering =2 three occtave
range, Mrs. Bebb Jones trained and directed the varicus groups
of bell ringers which were formed to ring the bells.

Realizing that the aging 1898 Barckhoff organ might one
day be unusable, the Music Committee decided to establish a
fund for its replacement., Aware ofi this project, Mrs. Zdna
Jones, desiring to leave a memorial to the Church contributed
& large sum to the fund. The Music Committee then decided to
-extend the privilege of giving to present and past members of
the Church or their descendants. Because of the generosity ' -
of many doners, o beautiful organ was finally purchased, On
Saturday, September 4, 1971, a 19 rank Moller Pipe Organ,

Opus 10711, was dedicated.
About 1920, a consolidation of several denominations occurred
and it was at this time that the Salem Welsh Calvinistic Meth-
-odist Church changed over to become the Salem United Presbyterian
vhich it remains today.

A special service held each year in the church on the
Sunday evening before Labor Day which reflects the Welsh love
for singing is the Gymanfa Ganu. An evening spent in singing
hymns under the leadersnip of a noted director. JYeople come
for miles to shere in this event, The rafters ring and the
chandellers swing as the voiceg are raised in vlorlous Welsh
Song-
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One anecdote which comes out of the early churech period
tells of the one Negro family, the Langs, who resided om the
Richard Breese farm. Mr, Lang, a faithful member of the church
was elected to go to Presbytery. Accosted by other members at
the meeting as to why he, a black man,was representing the Welsh
Church, His reply, "Don't worry. I'm just a Welshman turned
wrong side out,"

ORGANTSTS OF THE PRESENT CHURCH:

Margaret (Breese) Jenkins 1898-1902

Alice (Jones) Morgan 1902-1906

Eunice (Evang) Foster 1906-1919, 1924-193%6
- Frances (Uhl) Breese 1920-1924, 1936-1962

Anne (Overholt) Morris 1963-1967

Mary Ann (Owens) Matthews 1968

Carol (Lanning) Foster 1968-

Mrs. Foster is organist at the present time

THE FLDERS OF SALEM CHURCH

. s ' 6:‘£
/ William Bebb ¥ Robert F. Evans &JLM,;'..,.&’ e
BEdgar L. Morgan “Thomas Morris woe (0o 420 e
»John M, Richards +David 1, Van Eman #

v Jeremiah Parry
vE. Vaugh Morgan
v“John E, Morgan
» Javid M, Jones
' » Marvin Evans
v J. Layton Jenkins
“Rowlend J. Whittington
Flljot Jones
“Osborne Jones
«David W, BEvans
~Robert P. Zirkle
vTfhomas R, Morris
*John T, Thomas
obert Beerman
vDelbert Dolbey
“John J, Morris
v¥, Lester Morris
Jaydn Lloyad
v+ D, Harries Evans
LRobert Bolton
vJohn Russell Iloyd
vD, Richard Owens
v Paul Ashton
v, Jamesg R, Evans
J. Alford Breese
¥ Gorden Pugh
aniel E, Foster
T, Bebb Jones
Thomas M, Jones
vHugh Owen Pugh
vDonald Richards
wGlen Owens
LDavid Hugh Evans

~Roland Evans
“Evan Thomas
+Pavid Wm Owens
~“Maurice N. George
*“Abraham Jones
aul Price
D. E. McDonell
¥Thomas A. Alban
vReege Morris
“Howard Richards
Y Mprgan H. Morgan
viiee Lare
vJohn L. Rees
“'Thomas J. Morris
v"Richard Jervis
:J. Pryse Morgan
John D, Jones
v Abraham B, Jones
*John C, George
*Richard S. Breese
v Maurice B. Jones
. David 0, Davies .
+ Charles H., Foster
+ Henry Uhl
« Ydward W, Williams
“ David J. Morris
“ Lloyd Rees
“ John L. Jenkins
v Stanley Roberts
“Thomas Jones
vBowen Evans
“Howell A. Jones
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THZ ELDERS AT THE PRESEN. TIVE:

Donald Richardc V.. Hquzh Cwen Pugh
aobert P, Zirkle Gordon D, Pugh
bLavid William Owens Lee Lare

Marvin Zvans Robert Beerman
David Van Fman, Clerk :

THZ TRUSTEDS AT THE PRESENT TIME:

Haydn ILloyd, Chm. Paul Ashton
John C, Morris, Sec, Thomas R. Morris
Janes R. Lloyd William ¥Evans
Larry Profit Ronnie Owens

Bugene Decker

The Salem Unifed Presbyterian Church has been blest by the
opportunity to serve God continuously for a period of ocne hund-
red and twenty-eight years.

SEVENTH DAY ADVENTIST CHURCH

The Seventh-Day Adventist Church of Elgin, Chio, was or-
ganized by lder 0, J. Mason, Narch 26, 1889, and was com-
posed of nine members at the bime of its organization, seven
of whon united by letter from the Mendon Church., They were
Amy Van “man, Benj. W. Van Zman, MeDonald Van Eman, Jennie
Van Zman, John Van Fman, Chester Smith, Bell Smith, John W.
Shultz, and O. . Shultz, Senior. Mr. J. VW, Shultz, A, L.

Van IZman and Mrs. Hattie Parrott comprised the first officers.

- By 1905 the membership had increased to 62. A church was
erected on property glven by Mrs. Amy Parrott located on Main
Street, Services were held in this church for eighty-two years.
Unfortunately, because of many of the member®s moving away and
several of the original ones passing awey, the church was
closed in 1970 and subsequently the building was sold and torn
down, :

VENEDOCIA PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

. Prior to 188% there had been no religious services held
in the >nglish language in Venedocia, At this time, however,
& number of Znglish speaking families had located in the vil-
lage, TFeeling the need for some kind of religious service they
organized a Jjunday School, It met in the first brick school-
house which stood across the street from the present church.
Mr. Henry llash was the first superintendent. The Sunday School
net regularly until several of the families moved fron the
villize and the Sunday School was abandoned.
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It was not until 1895, that, through the efforts of IMr. J.
J. Edwards, another English Sunday School vas organiged, Though
Mr, Edwards was not an ordained minister, he consented to give
Bible talks at the close of the Sunday School. Ac & result of
hieg talks many of the members began to feel the need of an
organized church,

Late in 1896, the Venedoeia Presbvterian Church was
orcanized with the 7ev, D, Dvans Jones as nastor. “hree elders
were elected: llessra, J, C. llorrlg, =, 5. Foster, amd'”, 8§,
Morgan, The members were: ', and lirs, 3. S. Foster and their
children Lizzie, Daisy, Charles and Honer; Mr, and Iirs, J. C.
Morris and children 2dith, leese and Lloyd: Kr, and lMrs. 7. 8.
Korgan; lMr. and Mrs. J. J. ‘dwards; and IIr. John Reese, the
first treasurer. Iir, T. 5. lMorgamn was the firgt clerk of the
session. The organists were: IMrs. Kate Uhl Davies, lMras., Pearl
Foster Olafson, !Mrs. Bertha Evans Uhl, Mrs. Hattie Blosser
Wise, and Migs Fligabeth Uhl., Until the church was budilt in
1896 the congregation met on the second floor of the school-
house which stood at the southeast end of College Street.

In lMareh 1914, Rev. William Surdival became the pastor,
Unfortunately on February 11, 1916, fire broke out and the
church burned to the ground, never to be rebuilt, For a tine
services were held at various places. PPinally in 1918, nmenbers
of the Venedogia Presbyterian church united with the Salem
Churen,

ZION PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

The arrival in York township, Van Wert County, in the
spring of 1850, of four Welsh families from Cincinnati, Ohio,
rnarked the beginning of the Zion community., This group con-
sisting of Abranham Jones, Hush 1P, Jones, Thomas Hushes, and
Griffith Goodwin, was ausmented two years later by the arrival



of Mrs. Elizabeth Thomas and family, David Breese, John .
Hughes, from Cincinnati, and Richard W. Owens and family from
Wales, These families all located in sections 21, 22, 27 and
28, and the area came to be known as the Upper Settlement,

Religioue serviees were held regularly as early as 1854
in the Abraham Jones' log house., It was Sunday School at first,
and later preaching services as well., In 1863, the congregation
decided to build a church and so erected the firgt frame struc=-
ture on tie present *van Hughes propertyr, This church, a
"Union Church" was organized consisting of both Congregational
and Calvinistic Methodist elements and named the Zion Church.
In time, however, the church became definitely affiliated with
the ‘lelsh Calvinistic Ilethodiet denomination and remained so
until. this body merged, in 1920, with the Presbyterian Church
in the 1, 5. A.

,From the beginning Zion Church has been a joint pastorate
with the Salem Church of Venedocia, Mollowing are the minis-
ters who have served as pastor-:

The Reverends Hugh Pugh (1854-1865), J. F. llorgan (1865-
1032}, Hugh Davies (1885-1886), R. Vaugn Griffith (1336-1389),
Thomas loberts (1890-1895), Edward Roberts (1895-1913), R. J.
Williams (1914-1920), Williem Jones (1923-1931), W. T, Jones

1935-1942), Gerald Johnson (1943=1949), Wm G, Chalmers
1949-1950), Fllis ILloyd (1951-1962), Tromes G. Patterson
(1963-1968), Georpge .. Witmer (1969-1573), and the present
pastor, Von Giessler (1975- ).

By 1900 the Ziecn econgregation began thinking about bui-
lding a new church, Again it was Abraham Jones who was looked
to for advice and it was he who selected the site on the Wil-
liam Hughes farm where the lovely brick church now stands,
south of Jonestown on the Jonestown Road. It was completed
and dedicated in 1902, It remains a monument to the con-
gecration of the God-fearing and church loving families of
Zion seveniy years ago as well as to the faithfulness and
devotion of its members today.

Its service were conducted in Welsh and the Sunday
School was taught in the Welsh language until about 1920,

The Rev. W. T. Jones was the last minister to preach in Welsh.

At present the congregation is composed of 85 members;
however, there are only %0 who are active.
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- ORGAITISTS OF ''HE ZION CHURCH:
1. Howell Jones delen Breege Johnson
Slizabeth A, Jones Jean Wentz
Hargaret H. Jones Bonnie 2olton
Mary Breese - . Margaret Jones
fabel Williams lMyrile Dariene Jones
Myrtle Evans Lvenly Eileen LeSouer
Gwenelyn Hughes Taylor Jean Wentz is organist at the pre-
S sent time,

ELDEXS WidO HAVE SERVED THE ZION CHURCH ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Abraham Jones
John Breese
Thomas Hughes
b, J., Jones
David L. Davies
Richard Davies
L. Minor Davies
D, Edwin Jones .-
P, M. George

J. Elmer Davies
Edwin Swygart
S. ‘D. Groge
Dwight Rhoades
Hugh W. Jones
John Lewis
Alice Jones
Alice George

Edith Heath
Betty Breese
John George
John D, Breese
G. H., Jones
Walter D. Lewis
D, J. 2reese
Alonzo Rhoades
Savid V, Jones
rmery Price
Henry T, Hughes
Latimer Breese
Walter Phelps
George Swygart
Anne Swygdart
Tom Missler

ELDERS OF THE PRESENT SESSION ARE:

Mrs. Heed Heath

Mrs, Latimer Breese

Emery Price

Mrs. Palmer George
Dwight Rhoades
Tom Missler

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES ARE:

Mrs. Lecona Wentsz
John Lewis
Palmer George

Mrg. Emery Price
Latimer Breese
D, L., Walter



A HISTORY OF THE

SCHOOLS
‘OF YORK TOWNSHIP

The idea of an educated electorate originated in the col-
onies, Many of them established "Dame Schools" to give early
training to the younger children and to prepare boys for ad-
mission to an academy where they were prepared for admission
to Harvard which had been founded in 1636 or William and Mary
in 169% or Yale in 1701. :

In keeping with this tradition and complying with the
Ordinance of 1787, a school house was built on the Jesse
Atkinson farm located in gection 32 in 1843, Soon a second
one was built on the Jonn Arnecld farm in section 13, followed
by one on the Jacob Goodwin in section 25, There being an
abundance of native timber these early houses were built of
logs. They were, however, soon replaced by brick structures.

The first two story brick building was erected at Elgin
in 1846, Originally called number 2 the number was changed
to number 7 by action of the school board in April 1896. When
this building had to be replaced a two room wooden structure
wag erected, It is now occupied by the Elgin Service Center,

The following table give the names, locations, and dates
of the nine school districts that were eventually established,
the original number and the final one assigned by action of
the school board in 1896 to correspond to the method followed
in numbering the sections.

NAME SECTIONS DATE NUMBER
Auglaize 1-2-11=12 1865 Q===1
Whitfield 3-4~9=-10 1876 Hm==?
Painter h=b="T7=8 1858 4===3
*Rossville 18=17-19-20 1871 Tm==i
#Jonestown 15=16-21=22 1876 Bm==b
Puzh 13=14=23-24 1870 1===6
Elgin 25-26-35-%6 1846 2--=7
Moss 27-28-33-34 1852 5---8
Bevington 29-30-31-32 1865 3===9

Rossville replaced Dibert 1868
Jonestown replaced Hugh F. Jones 1866

Bach of these districts, or sub-districts as they were
called, elected one person to serve on a board which directed
the echool bdusiness for the entire township. This board of
nine elected a president and employed a clerk who was not a
member of the board. They employed teachers, let contracts,
those building sites, purchased the furnishings, chose the
text books, purchased them and sold them to the students., FEach
district was supplied with wall maps, dictionaries and other

items when one copy was deemed sufficient.
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Schools were built according to the same general plan. From
the minutes of the board for April, 1878, comes these specifica-
tions for a brick school house. 1t was to be 26 teet wide by 32
feet long, one story 12 feet in the clear, the foundation 3 feet
deep and 16 inches thick, made of stone laid in mortar made of
lime and sand with 18 inches below the surface and 18 inches from
surface to sleepers, Balance of walls to be brick 12 inches thick
with hollow.

Sleepers 2 inches thick and 10 inches wide made of white or
burroak, placed 16 inches from center to center, double bridged
and resting on a sill running through the center of its founda-
tion lengthwisge.

Rafters 2 inches thick and 5 inches wide. Good self sup-
porting truss roof. Lath 1 inch thick, 2 inches wide, Shingles
first class, made of pine 18 inches long and placed 5 inches to
the weather,

Floor to be of ash, well seasoned, 4 or 5 inches wide,
planed and grooved, Blackboard above floor the same distance
28 windows laid in plastering, 5 feet wide and clear across the
back part of the house with small moulding at upper and lower
edge of said board. Wainscoting from floor to windows and all
around the ingide of the house the same height and variegated
with ash and walnut, Hat racks all around the inside of the
house except the back end with double hooks 10 inches apart.

Four shelves on each side of the house from the blackboard
to the windows 15 inches apart and 15 inches deep for dinmer
baskets.

Plastering 3 coats, last one white. All inside woodwork
. filled and varnished, Three coats of paint on all outside
woodwork-white, Three windows on each side, 8 lights to a
window, Glass 12x20,

Windeow blinds on the outside of each window made in 4
pieces with movable slats, hung on proper hinges and necessary
fastenings, Windows fixed to raise from the bottom and let
down from the top.

Good and substantial door and window casings. Door and
window sills to be free stone. Window sills 5 inches thick
and 12 inches wide, door sill 8 inches thick and 12 inches
wide. Door 2 feet 10 inches wide and 6 feet 10 inches high,

2 inches thick, 4 panels made of pine and hung with 3 hinges.
Transom above door with one glass 6 inchea wide and about 2
feet 10 inches long. Sagment door and transom frame, door and
windows arched over, Roof one-third pitch. A good and sub-
stantial mortised lock on the door.

Listed among the early contractors were John Zigler, and
John Ringwald who, because of his superior workmanship was
awarded several contracts.

The year lhe Rossville school house was built to replace
the old Dibert building, Mr. Ringwald set up camp in the old
building and remained there until the new school was completed.

The Board of Directors, comprised of one member from each
of the sub-districts, was meeting in the Hugh F., Jones school
house later to be named Jonestown, or number five. W, H.
Nicodemus was president and I.. W. Bethards elerk., Other members
were D, W, Twans, John Prichard, John 7. Ross, H. F, Jones, D.
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J. Owens, George Sills, S. H. McClure and Thomas Tiffot.

J. Zigler was awarded a contract for a one room brick
school house to cost $580.00. Eventually all nine districts
nad dbrick buildings. By 1881 the cost had risen to $865.00.

Due to the ravages of time and the pranks of children
such as removing bricks from the outer walls and carving the
desks and woodwork, several of the buildings had to be
repaired or replaced. If they could not be repaired they
were usually replaced by a frame structure several of which
have been incorporated in buildings now in use.

In March, 1880, the York and Jennings boards agreed to
set up a joint district by each releasing some territory for
tax purposes, the school building to be located in Venedocia,
The schodl house, a two story brick building, was erected on
the land now occupied by the Lion's park. It was abandoned
when York centralized school opened in 1922. Subsequently
it was purchased by Jack Elias and the bricks uged to build
the Monroe Garage which stands on Main Street.

Some of the school houses were enclosed by a fence and
most had a porch of planks or cement., ZEach had two outhousges,
a coal shed and a well.

The furnishings of the school consisted of rows of seats
of various sizes running lengthwise of the room. Some of the
gseats were large enouch to seat two pupils. ZLater the¢ rooms
were equipped with seats of graduated sizes. In frort of
these seats was a recitation bench where each class sat to
"say" its.lesson. In front of this bench and facing the room
was the-teacher's desk., Later a platform was built for it,
extending from the edge of the girls' cloak room door to the
edge of the boys'. It also served as a stage for the programs.

Each %eacher taught the entire curriculum for the eight
grades in his school which meant he had about thirteen minutes
for each class. Now and then Friday afternoons were given
over to "spell downs" and rapid calculation---gides were chosen,
one from each side went to the blackboard and the teacher gave
a problem. The one who first got the right answer won a point
for his side. Coupetition often became quite intense,

Some of the text books used during this period remain
clagsies in their fields. An 1891 list of books purchased by
the board: Ray's Arithmetic, Harvey's Grammer, Electic
Geography, Electic U. S. History, McGuffey's Readers and
Speller, Flectic Guide to Health, Electic Copy Book. All of
these were to be purchased from the American Book Commany.

The school houge soon bLecame a meeting place for church
groups and "literary" societies. The literary societies
usually met on Friday nights to present various programs.

Many debates were held, also spelling "begs" and box socials
which were the crowning events of the social season. IFor

the box social, the ladies ot the community took boxes, filled
them with delicious suppers and elaborately decorated them with
crepe paper. FEach lady carefully kept secret how her box was
decorated. .A leading auctioneer of the community was secured
to mell the boxes to the highest bidder who was not supposed

to know whose box he was bidding on, However, sometimes

hints were supposed to have been passed on, The money raised



was then given to some worthwhile project.
Fventually the board decided that some control would have
~to be exerted and in 1882 passed a resolution that the school
house could be used for common school purposes only. Pinally
it became necessary to procure an injunction against one literary
society to prevent its using one of the school houses,

In April 1889, the School Board decided to build a belfry
on each school house and to purchase a bell for each of them.

The school year wag dilvlided into three terms, a fall term
of two months, a winter one of four, a spring one of two,

- Salaries for the teachers varied, One dollar and twenty-
five centis per day was the usual rate for the spring and fall _
terms for the lady teachers while gentlemen received two dollars,
The winter term salary averaged two dollars per day for the
lady teachers and two dollars and twenty-five cents for the
gentlemen., '

The first general school Act of Ohio, passed in 1821,
provided for the establishment of school districts within town-
ships and made some provision for their support from public
funds. One way to secure cooperation was to withhold funds.
The control of these districts remained in the hands of the
local boards and they resisted vigorously any attempt to
lessen their power. ' :

York Township was very fortunate to have school. boards
which were concerned about having an adeguate school system,
In fact, they were ahead of many townships in their creation
of the York system.

One of the first attempts by the state to regulate the
local schools was made in 1872, when townships or rural
schools were given permission to hire a superintendent on a
full or part time basis.

In 1892, The Boxwell Law was passed. This law provided
for a written examination to be given to students upon com-
pletion of eight grades of schooling at a designated place,
usually a county seat, A diploma was issued when the test
.was passed, This diploma gave the student the priviledge
of entering a high school of his choice with his tuition and
traneportation paid. Meny boards refused to covperate, but
the York board soon wrote this provision into its minutes.

Because so many boards refused to cooperate, the General
Assembly passed the Patterson Bill which made it mandatory
for school boards to comply.

Each year, upon receipt of their diplomas, the students
of York townshi~ were presented in a program at one of the
local churches. A zopy of one of these programs follows:

PATTERSOCN COMMENCEL#I'T
June 1%, 1911
210 CHURC=

song, "America" led by Prof. James J. Jones
Recitation, "Digging Away" Fay A. Brown
necitation, "Character and ‘eputation" Anna Glendola Morris
Recitation, "The lMeeting at Wendletown" Idna Gamble
Sole hy Talmage Hughes

"

Recitation, "™e Sculpture Boy" Glenn Owens
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iecitation "I Enow Not the Hour of His Coming" Anna M. Jones
Solo by Thelma Jones

Recitation, "The Antiquity of Freedon" James }. Heath
Recitation, "The 7agle" Clarence Owens

Recitation, "The Children" Anna Williams

Recitavion, "An Address to the Ccean" William Haydn Jones
Duet, llisses Ada and llary Jones

Jecitation, "Uncle Reuben's Baptism" Opal Miller
-ecitation, "Siege of the Alamo" Carey 3. Parker

Quartet, Alford 3reese and party

Recitation, "Little by Little" Jane L. 3alathe

Cration "Ilan's Progress and Problems" Phelan Huffine

Solo, Susan Jones -

Class Address, 'ev. ‘idward Roberts .

Presenting of Tiploma G, H. Jones, President of thc Board

Oy 1905, a cnange, ordered by the state was made in the
school'board nenbership. The 0ld board was dismissed and a
new one, consisting of only five members, who were elected =t
large from the township, was installed, However, each sub-
district still elected a representative who acted as 2 liaison
officer between his district and the official board,

The state was also hecoming more concerned and involved
with the educational problems of the various distriets. In
an effort to equalize the quality of education throughout the
state, the State Commissioner of Common Schools appointed
State Ichool Inspectors who periodically examined all public
schools in the state,

Ong of the first acts was to divide the schools into
three categories: First, second and third grade, Zach was
then issued a charter designating its grade.

The grade was determined by enrollment, decree of nro-

- Tessional training of the staft, scope of the curriculum and
physical condition of the building and grounds.

As a result of this concern a "Kew School Code of Chio"
was passed by the General Assembly in 1914, This law provided
for a County Board of Rducation, which hired a County Super-
intendent who was responsible for the administration and
supervision of all rural schools in the county, :r. J., A,
Greulach, Van Wert County's first one, served from 1914-192¢%,
This new law also provided for the submission, by the township-
board, of the question of centralization, if the electors
wanted it.

A movement was begun in 1913 to transfer z portion of
sub-district number one (Auglaize) to the Venedocia district.
This was, however, prevented by an injunction secured by the
York board on April 13, 1915, This attempt probablw developed
from the fact that in 1911, sub-district number 6 (Push) Sad
been closed and the territory divided between the (ilzin; 7
and Venedocia districts,

In 1916, sub-district number eight (loss) was closed and
in December 1919, sub-district number three (Painter) ourned
leaving only six of the originsl nine schools in operation,

Since the astate had been urging consolidation for a
nunber of years, the board decided to submit the gquestion to
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the voters. A special election was held on Ilarch 26, 1920 and
the iseoue passed, followed by the passage of a bond issue in
April for .100,000,00,

Thomas D, !‘cLaughlin, architect of lima, was enployed to
submit plans for the building and three acres in section 15
were purchased for 1800 from E. 7. Jones for the site,

To transport the pupils, eight busses were purchases and
bus routes established.

School was opened in the f2ll of 1922 with truck drivers
Henry Jones, Zarl Honroe, ", l. Davis, Russel Frice, Percey
Neiford, Clarence 'allick, Henry Jibert, Paul Byers, and
Forest Lewis, o Ay MeGes, janitor,

J. W, Reese, superintendent, V. -, Hansen, principal.
I'rs. Fearl Ludlow, 3 ‘dwin Jones, Alonzo Rhoades, Dee Jackson,
Laura F. Jones, Velna L. .iies, Glecndola Ilorris, conprised
the faculty.

The school was chartered as a first grade high school
with a eurriculum recormended by the state. The term to be
eizht monthsa.

On December 7, 1922, & public sale of the old schoolhouse
wes held. The York trustees purchased the Jonestown building
which 1s currently being used as the township house,

ey

Y ORK BCHOOL

The members of the school board were 5. L. I‘cGee, pre=
gident, W, D, Alspaugh, Dean Clippinger, 0, 3, Waltz, J., P.
Joneg, and J, W. 3eese, clerk,

with the opening of school ten students transferred
from Ohio City and Van Wert High Schools entering York as
Juniors, They were TFlizabeth George, Gladys leredith,
| argaret liorris, -race Reller, Carl Bevington, bon Couts,
Oscar Jones, fHarold lorris, Leland Ross and Kenneth Walte.
They comprised the first graduating class on April 25, 1924,

On August 1930, the school board passed a resolution to
conply with a State Department ruling by institutins a ternm
of nine nonths,

Cooperation with the Religious “ducation Committee re-
sulted in released time for non-sectarian religious instruc-
tion,

On May 13, 1931, the board passed a motion stating
that female teacher's contracts should contain the pro-
vision that, should she marry, her contract become null
end void at once,
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On May 14, 1934, the board granted permission for the
first alumni banquet.

On March 24, 1939, the Gideons were granted permission
to place Bibles in the school rooms and teachers were in-
structed to read from them without comment.

On August 17, 1942, due to the shortage of teachers
because of the war, the board changed its policy and decided
to hire married women "For the duration." As a result of this
action several married women were hired, Never again was mar-
ried status considered when interviewing a prospective teacher.
Tven though the school had operated successfully for years,
the State Department continued to urge centralization, so the
board finally called a meeting of the patrons of the district
on April 16, 1952, to consider the alternatives.

1., Take no action and abide by consequences,

(lose charter and state financial support)

2. Increase levy and operate school without charter.

3. Consolidate with Ohio City Liberty.

4, Consolidate with Ridge, Middlepoint, and Hoaglin-

‘ Jackson.
The result of the voting showed a decided majority in favor of
proposition number four, FEllis Jones was chosen to represent
York on the new district board. However, no immediate action
was taken and York continued to operate on a temporary charter
until 1959, when the State Department of Iducation, backed by
the General Assembly, refused to guarantee funds for the con-
tinued qperation of local schools making it impossible for.
small schools to meet state regulations,

The machinery for creating a new district was set up.

It was to be District Number One and was comprised of all the
territory contained within the boundaries of the Hoaglin-
Jackson, Van-Del, and York local school districts.

The voters of all three districts approved the con-
solidation, York by 233% to 63 against,

On July 7, 1959, the County Board of Zducation ap-
pointed a new school board for the district which was to be
known as Lincolnview.

The Yotk Board held its last meeting on June 29, 1960,
closing out all accounts on that date. Members of the board
were Richard Welker, president, J. Paul Jones, Robert Wallick, -
Howard Rauch, Edwin Prichard. Minor Davies, clerk,

Members of the last class to graduate from York local
School were: Martha Morris, Tom Jones, John Pruden, Pat
Perez, Nancy Owens, Phil Jones, Gary Dolbey, Sharon Rauch,
Jeff Pollock, Marcia Evans, Arlene Goodwin, Carolyn Morgan,
Larry Swick, Treva Mosier, Carol Schnelle, Marylin Morgan.

Superintendents who served York Local: J. W. Reese
1922-1926, D. L. Buchanan 1942-1943, H, E. Herr 1926-1930,

D. E. McDonel 1943-1950, J. W, Hickman 1930-1935, A, W.
Fishbaugh 1950-1960, Fred A, White 1935-1942,

County superintendents who supervised all the local
schools in the county: J, A, Greulach 1914-1925, M. J.
Morrison 1944-1946, D, R. Bendure 1929-1932, R. G, Brand
1946-1970, C. L. Shaffer 19%2-1944, J. E, Schaffner 1971-



“ YORK TOWNSHIP RESIDENT TENANTS AS OF 1975

Ridge-York %!23 Line '
r, & Mrs., David Schulte

Mr, & Mrs. Lawrence Baird

Pridgx Road
T. 8., David Pollock

Mr. & Mras, Dennis Pollock
Mr, Walter Lehman

wren-Ladeck Road

Mr. Mrs. Roger Davis
Mr., & Mrs., Gift

Mr. & Mrs, Ted Dunno

- e B
-

orms
Donald Snyder
Stete Bolton
Mr. & Mrs. Delbert Dolbey
Mr., & Mrs. Larry Smith
Mr. & Mrs. BEmery Swygart
Mr. & Mrs, Larry ILloyd
Mr. & Mra, Jeffrey McGarvey

Jonegtown Road

Mr. & Mra. Don Morris
Mr. & Mrs. Nungester
Mrs., Bessie Rauch

Mrs. Margaret Jones

Mr. & Mrs- Wal.ter HIEJ.I)B

State Route 81
Anthony J. Lippi
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Brodnix Road
Mr. 8.
Mr. & Mrsa.

onag L, Miller
David Breese

Thomas Road
uglas Hoo

State Route 116
Mrs. Vernon Hundley

Owens Road
Bob Crider
John Burden

Greenville Road
Fr obey

County Line
Jack Frysinger

Ronald Burnett




YORK TOWNSHIP URIGINAL LAND ENTRIES

Section 1

James McCray NE4 E% NE %
Michael Todd Ws NE3
Jahn Zimmerman NU?
James McCray SEx Ei SE4
Alexander Chevers Wa SE+
John Weikart Sut

Section 2
Frederick Carey NE ui NE §
Michael Yoeken E NE$
Henty 0. Williams NWt
Andrew Foster SE
James H. Young Swi

Section 3
Robert fdgar NE%
John F. Edgar Nui )
Daniel Canfield SE% E% SEd
Robert Edgar Ws SEx
John F. Edgar ' Sul+

Section 4 . |
Samuel 0. Edgar NE
James Donaldson Nu*
Samuel D, Edgar SEg¢
James Donaldson SW¥

Section 5
Henry K. Zimmerman NE
Alexander Biddle N ¢
Jonathon McKarns SE
John Gonguay SuWt
John Donalduon

section 6
Samuel Painter NE$
Joseph Nofzgar Nu%
Samuel Painter SE
Joseph Nofgzar SWi

Section 7
Levl Rowland NE%
Levi Rowland N
Thecdore B, Thomas SET W SE+
A. Cochel et al B 2 SE
James Steel SWt WA& NE of Su
Evan B. Jones SE$ SWi

46~

B3A
BOA
173A
8CA
80A
160A

87A
a7Aa
1744
16GA
160A

1604
16CA
60 A
94A

17648

174A
174A
160A
160A

17448
174A
1604
160A

404

1604
160A
172A
18BA

160A
168A
8UA
BOA
124A
41A

8-1836
11-1836
11-1836

B-1836
11-1836

9-1836
9-1836
8-1841
11-1836
9-1836

10-1836

10-1836

9-1836
10=-1836
10-1836

10-1836
11-1836
10~1836
11-1836

10-1836
11-1836
11-1836
10-1836

1836

10-1836
11-1836
10-1836
11-1836

11-1836
11-1836
1G~1836
1836
2-1837
§-~18309




Section 8 :
1604 11-1836

ames L. Donaldson NE%

James G. Donaldson NW 1604 11-1836

Evan B. Jones SE+ E¥ & Su of SE 120A 1836

John Weikart Nut SEL 40A 11-1836

Alexander Biddle SW$ 160A 11-1836
saction 9 |

£van B. Jones NE$ - 160A 9-1836 i

Evan B. Jones . NW 160A - 9-1836 ¢

£van B. Jonas SE$4 ud SEF BOA 9-1836" ‘

Fwvan B. Jones SW 160A 9-1836

A. Cochel et al €4 SE4 80A 20-1836
Section 10 ' 1

James Hooper NE 160A 9-1836 |

Ssmuéel Francher NW 160A 10-1836 |

James Hooper SE 160A 8-1837 |

Peter Bevelthymer: Su 160A 8~-1837 |

\

Section 11

Peter Heber NE 160A 61848

James M. Young NW 160A 8-1837 y

David Cook - SE 160A 11-1836 :

Andreu Foster S ui Su 80A 1836 i

Geo., McMarrian E St 80A 12-1836 %
Section 12

Robert Lysle ) NE 160A 12-1836

Robert Lysle N 160A - 12-1836

Robert Lysle sci 1604 "6-1836

Robert Lysle Sl 160A 6-1836
Sagtion 13
~Um Morman NEZ Ei NE 80A 10-1835

John Arnold u NE _.B0A 6=1836

Wm Morman NW$ 1604 6-1836

Lowis Culver SE 160A 10-1833

Lewis Culver SW+ SE sui 40A - 10-1833

John L. Harter sui Su 40A 2-1837

John L. Harter NW Sui 404 2=-18317

John Arnold NE1 SW 40A 6-1836
§gption 14

Benj. Strothers NE4 W% NE 80A 7-1836

James Walters NEi NE$ 40A 11-1836

Philip Shrock SCg NE 4040 7-1839

Benj. Strothers NU 160A 7-1836

Samuel Stiles 5E 160A 7-1836

g8enj. Strothers SWs 15047 7-1836 .
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Section 15

Joseph Saing NE 1604 10-2836
He Tolenton NW 160A 10-1836
Raniel Arnold SE 160A 10~1836
Jdseph Saint Sug £3% 80A 11-1836
James Wilson NW  Su4 404 1839
John Williberg SU  SuW 404 12=-1841
Section 16
Robert McQuorom 80A 1839
F. C. Elson a0a 1839
Geo. Clouse SE+ Wi+ SE% 80A 1839
Jacab Dibsrt BOA 1839
Francis Feltus 80A 1839
Robert Wolcott ‘ BOA 1839
Richard A. Evans Su$ Ei SW$ 80A 6-1870
He A, Wilkins W su; 80A 10-1867

Section 17

Evan B. Jones NE 160A 9-1836
Evan B. Jones N 16047 9-1836
John.M. Donaldson SE% 160A 11-1836
Hugh Lynn SWg 160A 11-1836

Section 18

Evan B. Jones NE 4 161A 9-1836
Josiah Castesl NW$ Sui Nui 40A 1835
James Ross E% Nui B2A 1836
Evan B. Jones NW$ Nu< 40A 9-1836
Evan B. Jones SE: 150A 0-1836
Henry Newman SU% 165A 10-18356
Section 19
James Clingan NE & 160A 4-1839
Henry Newman NW 160A 18-1836
John Hughes SEg Ei set B80A 11-1838
Geo. B. Ellis W SE$ 86A 6-1838
Geo. 8. Ellis Su% 160A 6-1838
Section 20 _
Jamas Lavin NEi 160A 7=1837
Henry Newman NWi E% Nu a5a 9-1836
John Heath UE NU BOA 1836
Henry Newman SE+ E#% SEf 80A 9-1836
Andre's ToLl Wy SE 40A 1836
Geo, Riss 5ut 5% Sud 80A 1836
Joseph Heath Nu4$ sui 40A 1836
Andrew Coil NE; SWe BOA 1836
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i Section 21

John Pouers NEZ E; NE$ B0A 11~1839
Geo. Knox WA NE 80A 1839
James Lavin NU$ Nu 4CA : 1839
Tobias Moore SE Nu 40AR 1839
John Cunningham NE Nu 404 1839
Tobias Moore Su NW 40A 1839
- John Touns - sci 1604 1839
John Touns sUt SE% su 40A 1836
Robart Thomas ) Sy Su 40da 18358
Thomas Towns NU% Su 40A 1836
John W. Timmons NE S 40A
- Section 22
Levl Salnt NE : 1604 1836
Reuben lWaites N N N 80A 1839
Mmary E. Reed S N 80A 1839
Wm, McClure SE4+ SE$ SE 40A 1836
Levi Saint N SE BOA 1836
James McGinty - Su SE 404
Wm. Lynn Su¢ 160A : 1836
Section 23
““Samuel Stiles NE+ NE4 NE 408 . 1836
Alexander McVickers W% SE%+ NEZ 120A 1836
John A. Freeman N 160Aa 1836
Lewis Culver SE+ NE% SE 40A 1836
Lewis Culver SE%. SE 40A 1836
James Mitchell W4 SE 80A 1836
Lantz Shannon Su$ 1604 1836
Section 24
Ueaslay Rush NE 160A 1833
Wesley Rush NW< NE NU$ 40A 1833
Ebenazer Culver SE+ NWi Nui BOA 1834
Llewis Culver - Su4 NW 40A 1834
Washington Marks SE$ 160A 1832
Washington Marks SUI £y SW BOA 1832
Washington Marks We Su B80A 1832
Section 25
“"John Keith NEZ S% NE 8OA 1832
John Keith NW4 NE 40R8 1832
Washington Marks NE$ NE 40A 1832
washington Marks NW$ NEZ N 40A 1832
Jacob Googduin SE$ Nu 40A 1837
Edward Williams Sy NUW 404 1839
Jacob Goodwin ' NUZ Nu 40A 1851
John Keith ° SE4+ E% SE 80A 1832
John Keith e SE 80A 1834
John Keith Sy} E% Su 80A 1838
Issac Miles Wt Su 80A 1838




Section 26

T John Smith NE 3 1604 1836
Samuel McClain NW$ 1604 1837
John Smith SE$ 1604 1336
Samuel McClain Su$ 160A 1836

Section 27

" Um McClain NE 180A 1836
Samuel McClain Ny 160A 1836
Wm MeClain SE 160A 1836
WwmMeClain Su 1604 1836

Section 28
Joshua Breidenstine NE 1604 1836
John Touns NWt NEE Nu$ 40A 1836
Robert Thomas SWd+ Nu$ 40A 1835
Jesse Miller SE% NW 40A 1836
Robert Thomas NW Nu 40A 1835
Sylvestsr Woolery SE+ W% SE 804 1836
Daniel Barris NE SEt. 40A : 1837
Jesse Atkinson SWi NWt Su 408 - 1835
Samuel Moore E+ & SWs Swi 1204 1836

section 29

Henry Neuman NE 160A 1836
John Sherwood NU 1604 1836
Jesse Atkinson SE Ei SE BOA 1836
Sylvester uoolery W% SE a0A 1836
John McCallam SWi sSus Swi 40A 1836
John Sherwood N+ Sui BOA 1836
C. Elliott SE4+ SEZ 40A 1836

Saction 30
Abram Rankin NE 160CA 1838
Eli Denison NW ui NW 80A 1836
Geo, M. Ellis E+ Nu 80A 18%
Waslay Miror SE i 160A 1836
John Stacts SuW 1604 1836

Saction 31

~ John Heath NE+ E% NE 80A 1835
John Sheets W NE 80A 1835
John Shaets NW 160A 1835
Jesse Tomlinson SE+ S% SE 80A 1835
John Heath NwW$ SE 40A 1835
John Heath N%» SE 40A 1835
John Heath Su$ ui su} 80A 1835
Francis Elliott E4 Su 80A 1838
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Section 32

Furman Jackson NE$+ NWi NE 40A 1836
Josiah Morton E% NE 4 BCA 1836
John McCallam SW$ NE$ 40A. 1836
Jesss Atkinaon ‘ NW¢ E% & SWH NwWi 120A 1835
Elizabeth Bevington NUE Nu4 40A 1851
John Tomlinsan SE¥ E% SE% BOA 1835 ;
John Tomlinson W%® SE4 80A 1835 _
John McNeill SWt E% 5U BDA 1836
Wm Carder NWi Su 40A 1837
John Ross SuW$ sui 40A 1837
Section 33
omas Hughes NE : 160A 1848
Ludwig Baws NW lu'g Nui 80A 1849
John Griffith E% Nuw 80A 1850
James Marks SE+ 1604 1833
James Marks Su F% SuU+ 80A 1833
Sarah Marks SWi SWé 40A 1834
John Morris N Suf 40A 1850
Saction 34 -
CucInda Marks NE si NE BOA . 1833
John House N¥ NE 80A 1838 .
Matilda Marks NWE SE+ N 40A 1835
William Laks W% &NE{ Nw$  12DA 1836
George Yanemon SE+ E% & sui SE4 1204 1836
Washington Marks NW+  SE 40A 1839
James Marks sut E£4 & NEF Su 1204 1833
Archibold MecClung SE+ Swi 40A 1837
Section 35
Junathon Vanemon NE ¢ 1604 1835
James Edgar Nuf 1604 1836
Robert Leslie SEy 160A 1835
Robert Leslie St 160A 1835
Section 36
Wm. Marrs, Jr. NE: SE: NE% 40A 1836
Wm, Farris W% NEF 8OA 1836
WM. Marrs, Jr, ~ NEF NEZ 40A 1837
Wm. Farris NW§ 1604 1837
Wm, Marrs, Jr. S5E% ué SE5 80A 1836
Robert Stram £ SEj BOA 1836
Wme. Marcs Swi E3  sSuwi 8U0A 1835

Wm, Farris WE  Sug A0A 1835




York Tounship Land Owners of 197%

Section 1
Arlc Pollock at al

Bessie Fisher & Walter Lehman
David & Hilda Morris

Homer & Ruth Reed

Charles Dunno

David W. Morris

David & Grace Evans
Bernadette Pohlman

David Lloyd Reese

Section 2 -
G. R. & £E. V. Dunn

Everett & Betty Jones
F. Earl & Clo Shaffer
Eatl & Velma Morris
Thomas & Evelyn Jones
J. E« & Grace Jones

G. & M. Keltner

Lloyd & Delta Morris
Thomas & Arlens Morris

Section 3
Helen Knittle

Ella £, Owens & Helen L., Knittle
k. P, Jeffrey et al
Elizabath R. Ouprey
Jos. R. Williams

Ge He & Io Owans
Baulah Leathers

De We & G, He Cwans
E. G. & M. J. Owans
H. Zaioler at al

£« R. & Rs H. Duprey
Ilo OQwens

J. & S. Silance

jectipm 4

t. R« & R. H. Duprey

De We & Go He Owens

Rufus H. Duprey

Howard Zeigler, Jr. et al
We E« & Ko L. Morris

Es D. Pennell st al

Re e & R. M. Stoer
Néllie J. Evans

Daryl L. & Carolyn 5. Girod
M. & S. Hartin

Max & £. Kraner

Section 5

Wanda 0. Gaise
Eduard & Maxine Amerman
Velma L. Manken

R. & L. Manken
John W. & Ursula A. Baxter

Mmartha M., Ellis

MLSFL%&E_).
Marguerite Rahrig
Luther & Luella Carlo
C. & H. Mpwary
Grace Profit et al

ga!&qJU.Ngiggggy J. Hiller

Section 6
Anna YV, & Raymond E. Shreeve
Crace Profit et al
Ruth Alice Hertel
Emma Herl
Ward M, Heffelfingser
Ruth E. Allen
Barbara J. Ludwig
Maye Cryer

Section 7
M. Harber et al
Nell Fugate
Alice Hertel
Donald L, Parkar
L. W. Remagen & P. I. Fugate
David Allen
R. D. &4 M, F. -Heath
Kent R, Profit
Ga Lo GODd
Harry T. & Helan L. Neate
Re Lo Neates
Walter & Mary Jane Patterson
R. &, R. Patterson
Soren Schuartz et =1

Section 8
obert H. Schwartz
Doyle & Mildred Tribolet
C. & J. Profit
Kent R, & Grace N. Profit
D. L. & J. Profit
G. Harold & Dorothy V. Gamble
Datha M. Gamble
Mary T. Murphy
Kenneth R. & Ruth E. Ducheney
We & E. Friesner .
Bessis Washburn st al
Gordon O. & Phyllis Rogers

Section 9

~ Donald W. & Barbara Morris
Harry T. Neate
John H. & Evelyn D. Schwartz
M. M. Rahrig
Mary E. Jones
Je &. A. Myers
George E. & Sandra E. Ropp
Donald He & M. E. Fi’s.l




- Section 10
; e &e Lo Stutz
William R. & Doris R, Evans
Galen E. & V. £E. Gamble
ROb.rt Ro & Lo Bra-se
. Le Go & Lucille Jones
D. Haydn Lloyd
Velma G. Hirsch at al
Ee Ws Williame
J. Re & D. H. Lloyd
John Re Lloyd
Warren C, & Alice A. Morris

Section 1l
M. Deitschal & M. Smith
Ruth Mgrris
Daniel E. Foater
John C. & Anne Morris
Romaine Owaens
Ronald & Janis Owens
D. Richard & Romains Owens

section 12
yrtle Jones
David E. & Mary Evans
Owen 0., Evans
Ruth W. Evans
Maurice N. George
John & Guen Evans
Stanley Roberts
Ro NBuland
L, Davis
R. Newland

Section 13
David Hugh Evans
Ruth W. Evans
Morgan S. & M. R. Roberts
Henry Uhl et al
Qwen 0. Evans at al
Harley H. Young
Jack & R. Fox
Wm. Lybold
Con-Muter
Melvia Taylor

Section 14
anhe
B. F. Davis
D. G. & M. Richarads
Stanley Roberts
J. Alford & Frances Brease
Ruth E. Evans
Richard M., Evans
Marquerite Fissel

Kenneth L. &HNnal‘L. Youngpeter

L. & Neal L. Yqungpeter

Section 17

Section 15
Rut E’.EevEHS“'

Loretta M. Williams

D, Haydn Lloyd

Warren C. & Alice A. Morris
John R, & D. Haydn Lloyd
John A. Jones et al

Re S. & Go H. Uelkar
Bernard & A, M. McMasters
Eual R. & Rosy Neal

Bernard Art

Saectiaon 16

ohn A. Jones
ARichard & Geraldine Welksr
0. 0. Whyman
Russell B, & Katherine Price
Tena Wilkin at al
Helen K. Johnson
David L. Walter

uly M
bav!d gTraglliamu

Larry Welker

Rober « & Mildred L. Cully
Donald & Jeannine Roediger

Mary T. Murphy

Frieda L. & J. Russell Prichard
Wilma A. Thomas

Js. & L. Speer

Gary L. Rogers

Thomas M, & E. 0., Missler

Section 18

James t£. Dibert

Fe We Poling et al

R & L. Hines

Paul G. Mosiar et al
Kanton & M. Jaerome
Thos. R. Dibert

Helen L., Naate

Dorothy Prior

Fauna & Otis L. Denney
Robert R. Patterson
Robert E£E. & J. L. Mosier

Section 19

C. ¥ C. Lands Inc.
L. & 5. Clouse
Lela Dudgeon

Doris E. Kiracofas
Helen M. Price
Marion R. Linton

Lois C. Foltz & Beatrice L. Nofer



Section 20
Lois C, Foltz & Beatrice L. Nofer
Alice Evans

Section 25
Richard M, & T. M. Zirkle
J. R. Taylor & Leota .Smith

Ceanorge Craona

Gordon #. & G. B, Smith
Wm. H. & Hazel I. Ries
Alice M. Marker

Paul E. Ries

Section 21

Holan vans

Alice Evans

B. R. Davis

Paul Ries

Hugh W. Jones

Russel ‘A, Baker at al

Gomer R. Breess

Dwight B. & Mar jorie J. Rhodes
Chariss & Mary Price

H. W. Rauch

Section 22

Russel A. Baker et al
John A, Jones st al
D. Philip Jones
Mary Edith Heath
Bernie L. Hughs
Razzie D. Springer
H. Luther McCoy
Delmer E, Welker
Emory Price
Hazel 0., Wilkins
H. W. & M. B. Rauch
Larry Welker

Section 23

Edgar L. & Maxine Morgan
f£dgar L. Morgan

Leona S, Reahm

5. & L. Macklin

Merls E. Wilkins

Hazel E. Wilkins

D. Richard QOwens

Je Alford & F. U. Breese
Maegaret E. Morris et al
Jéhn & Grace E. Pygh

Section 24
Henry Uhl et al

Margaret L. Morris et al
Helen L, Welker

John R, Taylor & Leota Smith
Richard Unverferth

Richard M, & T. M. Zirkle

Orren & H. Welker
Marvin S. Welker
Ray & Alma Boroff
Betty L. Rhodas

Joan C. & Kent R. Shellena

Haerman Wienken
M. VYan Eman
J. Krugh

Saction 26
James Hughes
m. S. & Jo 50 Uslker
M. E. Van Eman
Gertie Davies
Je. G, & L. E. Hughs
J. Alford & F. U. Braeesas
d. 0. Welker
John Elmer Havies
Helen J. Poling
Hazel D, Wilkins
We & A. Pavel

Section 27
No Ec & Ho Dq Uilkins
Hazel B. Wilkins
Emory Price
W. Evans & M. Hone
Everstt L, Lewis
£, Lowsll lLewis
David C. Jones et al

Section 28
Davl + Breese
Bonita K. Zeigler et al
R. &. B. Baxter
Harriet J. Grogg

- David J., Breass
D. Ries & K. Joseph
Paul E, Ries et al
Arthur Thomas et al
Paul E. Ries
Leah R. Ries
D. & L. Carter
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:QSlotion 29

.~ Paul £, Ries et al

i Sarah J. Benfield

Paul E. Ries

Leah R. Ries

Uayne & Leah Ries
Wayne Ries

K.ith A. & E. M. Profit
C. &. J. Oberlitner
Bessie Rauch

Homer Geans Fronefisld
T. A. Rauch et al

Um., He & Hazel 1. Ries
Donald R, Miller

y Section 30

3 » A, Rauch et al

Erma E. Wortman

H' T' & GI s' Rauch

R. & B. Baxter

E. Hobart & Edna L, Profit
Marrion R, Linton

b. R. Linton

Homaer & Gene Fronefield

¢ Section 31

t ~ L. Hobart & Edna L. Profit
¥ Kkeith A. & Eunice M. Profit
$. E. Davis et al

Max S. & Mary Roehm

Stella 1. Osburn

Alice B, Wallick

Maud E, Butler st al
Burnell Hammons

Martin Trisel

Baltimore Quinanes

Robert Daugherty

k Section 32

- R, & B, Palte

Wayne Ries

Anna Seagsr et al

Glen G. Pruden

E. Re & Florence E., Oberlitner
Paul E. & Naomi R. Thomas

J. Hill

Section 33
arile Priochard
Eduin & Ruth Prichard
Eduin A. & Dean J. Swygart
D. Jo & N, Swygart
J. Latimer Breaaas
E. R. & A, E. Swygart

Section 34

J. Paul Jpnes
Richard E. Jones
Palmer George
Alice J. George
Paul G. Davies
Thomas P, Jones
Harry Boroff
Paul Boroff
David Hugh Evans

Section 35

~ Amy wharton

Martha E. Van Eman
Richard Bolton
Betty J. Ramsey
E. & R. Bolton
L C. & R. E. Bowsher

M. M. Jr. & M., B. Burnett
Anna Rogers

Carl M, Book

Harry Boroff

Guy Houser Jr. & Juanhita Blatz
T, & M. E, Van Eman

Saection 36

Ira P. Maocklin

B. J. & C. J. Thompson
Richard W. Bassett
Harley H. Young

Harry jBoroff

Inas Berniece Overholt
Leah Albright '




WORLD WAR I VETERANS
Anderson, George

Behns, Lewls
Breese, J. Ambrose
Burnett, Lester

Coll, John

Davies, Wm. Clifford
Davis, Arthur 0.
Davis, Charles
Davis, John D,

_ Hover, Howard
Hughs, Alfred

Johes, Abner

Jones, Edwara O.
Jones, Emlyn, O.
Jones, Evan E,

Jones, Lewis 8.
Jones, M. Palmer
Jones, RBussell Gwilym

Lewis, John
Lewisg, Walter D.
Llcyd, John C.

Monroe, Earl
Morris, J. Rees
Morris, Robert
Morris, T. Gleason

Owens, J. Alvin
Cwens, Leonard
(weng, T. Minor

Price, Charles
Price, L. Maldwyn
Price, Thomas E.
Prichard, Robert
Prichard, Russell J.
Protsman, FEAwin

Rauch, Roxy P.
"Ress, Lloyd
Hoberts, Thomas P.

- Schwartz, Soren
Smith, Gregg

Thatcher, Lewis
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Ukhl, Albert

Waltz, George Ray
Wentz, Bruce
Williams, D. Willard
Williams, Edward W.
Williams, Gomer J,
Williams, Joseph R,
Williams, William

WORLD WAR II VETERANS

Boley, Eugene
Boley, James

Boley, Lee

Bolton, Edwin
Bolton, Paul
Breese, Richard M.
Breese, Robert
Burnett, Donald
Burnett, John L. Jr.
Burnett, Karl-F.
Burnett, Lester
Burnett, Warren H.
Burnett, William W.

Coil, Carl B.

Coll, John J,.

Coil, Richard L.
Couts, Clarence Jr.
Couts, Joseph
Couts, Robert
Crone, Donalad

Crow, Robert C.

Davies, Wallace I,
Davis, Garland

Davis, W. Harold
Davis, Walter

Davis, William Alfred
Detrick, Donald
Dibert, Charles
Dibert, James R.

Evans, David E.

Evans, James David
Evans, John

Evans, Richard Marvin
Evanes, Robert C.

Evans, EBRoland Everett
Evans, Thomas Lloyd
Evans, William Wendell




W, W. I Veterang--2

Fisher, Kenneth
Fisher, Harry
Fisher, Marvin
Fisher, Russell
Fissel, Donald
Foster, Daniel E.
Fox, Jack

Galloway, Thomas
Gamble, Richard
Good, Donald
Goodwin, Don

Harbert, Edwin
Heath, James
Heath, William
Hirr, Carl
Hundley, Edward
Hundley, Verncn

Jones, D, Rager
Jones, D, William
Jones, David H.
Jones, David Vaughn

Kline, Floyd
Kline, Hubert

Lare, Lee

Lewis, Carl A,
Lewics, David
Lininger, Otis J.
Linton, Junior M,
Linton, Lewis
Lloyd, John RHussell

Manken, Gerald
McCoy, Luther
McMasters, Bernard
Metzger, Paul V.
Miller, Carl
Filler, James
Miller, Paul
Miller, Richarg
Milliser, Caril
Micsler, Paul WM.
Monroe, Thomas
Morris, David wayne
Morris, Harold w.

Morriz, Lloyd E.
Nicholn, dipe:
Nieforz, Freg

Nieford, Niel
Nieford, QOlen

Overhelt, Gene
Overholt, Lowell
Owens, David Wwm,

Parker, Donald J,
Phelps, Johnnie
Pollock, David

Pollock, Ernest, Jr.

Pollock, Gene
Pollock, Merlin
Pollock, Richard
Pollock, Stanley
Pollock, Wayne
Price, Chas, W.
Price, Melvin 8.
Pryor, Darrel

Rauch, Howard
Rauch, Hugh
Remlngton, Lawrence
Rheam, Max .
Bhoades, John M.
Rhoades, Paul W.
Richards, Donald G.
Richards, Monford

Scheidt, Wallace
NEchwartz, Robert
Shank, Paul
Stuber, Richard

- Taylor, Ralph

Thomas, Essie M,
Uhl, Raymond, H,.

Van Eman, David
Yan Eman, Raymond

Wallick, Lewis
Wallick, Heed
Waltz, Hobert
Ward, Earl
Welker, Loweil
Witkine, John
Williams, Glenn
wWilliams, uGcrdon

Willlamg, willard w.

Yoh, Paul,

ezirie:r, Howard .
Lirkle, rnonert
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KOREAN WAR VETERANS

Amerman, Edwarg,

Bevington, Howard
Boley, Donaleé
Boley, Harold
Bolton, Robert
Brenneman, John

Couts, George
Couts, Jay
Crone, Dean

" Crow, Kenneth

Emans, Merle
Evans, Wm. R.

Fronefield, Jack
Gamble, Paul
Heath, Roger
Jones, Gordon
Kable, William

Manken, Richard
McNamee, William
Medaugh, John
Morris, Warren C,
Muter, Robert

Oberlitner, John
Owens, Haydn

Pollock, Frank
Price, Donald

Schwartz, John H.
Shaffer, Hex
Swygart, Dean
Swygart, George

Thomas, Allen
Thomas, Donald

Wallick, Clarence
Welker, Stanley
Williams, David
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VIETNAM WAE VETERANS .

Ashton, Charles

Bolton, Robert
Book, Larry
Boroff, Leslie
Bradshaw, Phillip
Burnett, David
Burnett, Theodore

_Burnett, William

Coll, Kenneth
Cully, Edward

Davis, Steven

Evans, Dan J,.
Evans, William R, II

Foster, Eric
Fox, Billy
Fox, Larry .
Hundley, Robert

Hundley, Vernon Jr,

Jones, .Thomas
Lippl, Anthony

Longstreth, Homer
Lybold, Bill

Mc Masters, Bernard, Jr.

Miller, Maurice
Missler, Kent
Morgan, David
Morgan, William
Morris, Gregg

Pollock, Scott
Pollock, Steven
Profit, Gary
Richards, Randy
Snider, Fred
Spear, James
Stutz, Larry

Thomas, Gary




Farms of York Township owned by the same family for
eighty~five years or more with the original purchase date,

Daniel Foster--1836
David H. Evans--1847
John 0, Pugh--1850
Janet Smith and Ralph
Taylor--1864
Mrs. Daniel Evans--1867
Bonita Hughes Zeigler
~=1867
J. Paul Jones--1868
Rmssel Dibert--1868
Alford Breesge--1872
Martha Van ‘man--1840
Gordon & Gail Smith
C==1872
“"homas R. Morris--13S0
Mrs, Tena Wilkins--1886

Hugh W/. Jones--1846

Edith Heath--1850

irs. David M, Jones--=1864

#dwin Prichard--1865

Marvin Zvans--1867

Zdwin Swygart--1867

Gomer Breese--1867

Dwight .hoades--1867

Richard E. Jones--1868

Warren Morris--1881

W. Ries-=1872

Peter Profit--1872

Lois Foltz & Beatrice Nofer
--1872

lizabeth Duprey--1874

-5G-
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Elgin, Van Wert County, Ohio
Established on June 11, 1883

Postmasters Appointment Dates Through
: September 30, 1971

Marion Goodwin June 11, 1883

T. W. Morris December 16, 1885

Joseph A, Goodwin ‘November 1, 1886

Mrs. Angeline M. Hopkins January 10, 1889

John E. Johnson August 16, 1889

John €. Mechling May 29, 1891

James Ellas June 22, 1893

Leonard A, Goodwin July 12, 1893

Abijah Goodwin October 26, 1894

Isaac N, Tracy September 12, 1895

Emory Roller July 13, 1896

Samuel Dannison January 11, 1899

Charles A. Roller April 24, 1905

Otis C. Liniger April 2, 1528

William R. Burnett March 5, 1929

George M, Graham November 13, 1931 (acting)
Mrs, Mary E, Graham September 30, 1951 (assumed charge)

October 11, 1951 (acting)

Venedocia, Van Wert County, Ohio
Established on July 26, 1866

Postmasters Appointment Dates Through
: Septembey 30, 1971
Rowland J, whittington July 26, 1866
Miss Annie Roberts March 3, 1873
T. J. Jones April 20, 187k
Thomas A. Jones April 28, 1879
Mrs, Jane Evans March 22, 1880
John Uhl January 18, 1886
David H. Edwards August 16, 1889
John Uhl ‘ August 18, 1893
David H, Bvans December 22, 1897
Frank J. Uhl - February 1, 1940 (assumed charge)
February 8, 1940 (acting)
Miss Pauline E. Davies August 28, 1941 (confirmed)

October 1, 1941 (assumed charge)
{name changed by marriage
to Pauline E, Miller on
April 28, 1961)

Zelma L. Evans October 11, 1963 (acting)
Lee J. Lare August 30, 1965 (acting)
: September 17, 1965 (assumed charge)

We can furnish for $3.00 electrostats of the site location reports
relating to the Venedocie and Elgin post offices.
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Years ago it was & common Dratllru Lo put grain in the barn. Then they
would £ thh out of the barn. ¢ Chreshing out of John Van Emans
juz ore World War I. Standing 1st row left to right, Jobo El-
ion Van Eman, Vernon Thatcher, Theodore Thatcher . Mariuvn
BHME MJ]TJMNH.DMIWHEEM.MHJWHDMWR_lnlmehthn
Walter Cooper, John Van Eman, James C. Nichols, sitving on black
c killed World war T amd Victor Van Eman on white

Dave Griffith's Tin Shop
Nave Griffith amd W. B. Bvans




e
ROSSVILLE SCHOOL
F Allen (tescher), C1 Rosas, yd Thomas, Floxd
(Smith] Marker, Della Slegle (Chambers), Alonzo
kKnapp, Glenn R,
unni (Nelferd), Blanch Harp (Ham
lkner {Crose), Leena Smith (Broun), Golda Harp
raw® (Davisi, 3rd r Gladys Wallick, Ruth Dibert
* (Dibert), Tnes Rlce, Orace Rice (%eam), Millie
icky, @Grace Ing Andersen, St i Harp (Parker), 4th
i b 8, Roy Waliz, Homer Dlbert, Wllllie Price,

Rire, Ern + R 11 Jones, Lewls Ross, lckes, Iro
row: Russell Dibert, Doyt Price, Gaylord Dibert,

WHITFIELD SCHOOL
18t row: Everett Morris, Dale Elle Paul Eller, Luther Owens, ind
r Mildred Breese, Helen Br Glemabell Ricketts, Gladys Eller,
E yn Davis, Elizabeth william Margretta Arzede, garet Wms.,
Wargaret Da , Margaret Owens, d row: -Wr. L. Rhoa teacher),
Eenneth Mo Neil Rieketts, Harold Gamble, Leater Hu
Reess, County Bupt.

FIRST lst GRADE AT YORK SCHO

Clay to dwin, Junlor Boroff, Wentz Al
Nelson Calathe, tel Weshb arl Baxter, Gleon
Helen Breese, Wargaret Cecrge, Lalis Agler, Anna McZinkle
Poll , BEdith Jones, Margaret K., Esther Thatcher, Ingz Jones
Mary orge, Winifret Couts, Elizsbeth Priddy, 3rd row: Leona
Mary foller, Stella Hundley. Mary Faurot, Latalis Runyon, Reymond
Evana, &th re Flegert, L1111 P jelma Owena, Mild-
red Breese, pale Elagle, &, Wa Oalloway,
Morgaret Hugh 5th rov: Dean Rice, Haydn Owens, We Rémegan, Prank
McZinkle, Catherine Thomas

iat row: Alford Bresse,

Roberta, Russel Evans, and ro

Jane Evans, Irens Eveans, Mcble

Alphonso Hoffaan, Alice Poster, Helen Evans, Olivia ter, Ly
Jones, Nelaon Foster, 3rd row: Sam Breese, John Russe]l Evana,
Broepee




VENEDOC TA ECHOOL

1st row: Maldeyn Roberts, Edgar Davis, David Thuraton Jones, John
Pugh, Freddie Alford Davis, Charles Jones,
Devid M.’ Jones,
Edward Worgan,
endolyn Jones,
Ethel Hurless,

Daniel Davis,
Morgan Evens,

Margretta Meredith,

Elizabeth Jones, RButh Richarda,

_tu =

1. Mary Price 3. Gwen Lewis 3. Frances Evans
6. Luemia George 6. Mary Thomas 7. Margiret Price 8. Tommy Priecp
B. Murl Dorrety 10. Russell Prichard 1]. Maldein Price
Jones 13. Hazel Jorpes 14, Gertrude Oeorge
16. Pearl Tracy 17. Elizabeth Prichard
Jones 20. Ted Hughea 21, Dick Evans 22
Thomas 24, Margaret Evans
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JONESTOFN SCHOOL
lat row, left to right, Winnefred Lloyd Miller, Hannah Lloyd, Eliz-
aheth Lloyd, Treve Jones Harter, Laura Francis Jones, Lols Aughes
Morgan, Mary Williams Price, Danfel Jones, Kemnmeth Hughes, Ind row,
Wabel Fvans Willisms, Roth Jones, Eunice Jones Morgan, Anne Williams
Hughes, Blodwyn Jones, Gladys George, Evan Williams, Gaylerd Jones,
Chase Duvies, Clyd Evans, Dewey Willimms, Ror Morgen, Havdn Jones,
Edith Breese Heeth, Mergsret H. Jones Hughas, Marlenna Jones, 3ed
row, BEdith Tucker, Mabel Painter (Teacher), Ethel Hughes, Hugh M.
Jopnes, [. Irvin Jonis, Rlchard Bresse, Waller Lewis.

AUNILATZE BUB-DISTRICT
1at row: Rufus Ionorris, unknown, Harold Roberts, unknown, Asa
Pollock, unknoen, Florence Btrother, Lucile Evans, Ruth Morris,
RButh Robartz, nd row: unknown, Viola PFoster, Florence Pollock.
unknown, Gladys Pollock, Marshal Roberts, Lloyd M., Howard Rob=-
arts, Pred Preston, 3rd row: Tom Winor Owons, Reede MoOrris,
Margaret Robertis, Edith Merris, Ossle Biniff (teacher) Evelyn
Jones, Hazel P ok
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OED BREESE PRODUCED A LOCAL MINSTREL SNOW AT YORKE BSCHOOL AND AT VENEDOCLA.
fiicharda, Irvan Jones, E. D 9. D. Thosas, Elmer williams, Clearne Owens, Herria Evans, Rob Owens, Dmvie Owens, 2Znd Row:
Kenny Waltz, Dufus Morrie L ¢ Roberts, Gene Evans, Ed Jopes, Luther Fillisms, J.E. Morgan, Pred Davis, B11 Dans,
Palme Davis, Plame Oe e, Travis Breess, R Reesse Morris, Laten Jenkins, Tom Morgan, Daniel Evans, Russ Evans, Alford Breese

and deughter, Glenn Owens, Art Davis, pick {Red) Evanms, Osborne Jomes, Paal (Dick) Jomes.

IN 1629 ALF
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Venedocia Depot Rev. Hugh Pugh's Homestead



Well pulling rig

8 with biﬁd&} hn.

Charles Foster Farm

Cutting

Yenedocia Livery Barn
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Venedocin Street Scenes
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J.C. Morris harvesting corn on the
Ju.D0. Kennedy Farm - 1875

Znd Venedocis Elevator

=

Bheller Corn Picker Mrs., J.C., Morris
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